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DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Report”) dams statements that constitute “forward-lookirtgtements”within the meaning of tl
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995,aanended. Such statements can be identified hysthef forwar+looking terminology sutc
as “believes”, “expects”, “may”, “might”, “estimates”, “will”, “should”, “could”, “plans” or “anticipa tes” or the negative thereof or ott
variations thereon or comparable terminology, ordigcussions of strategy. Any such forwhrdking statements are not guarantees of fu
performance and may involve significant risks amdartainties, and actual results may vary mateyidibm those discussed in the forw-
looking statements as a result of various factdfese factors include the effectiveness of manag&strategies and decisions, our abilit
implement our internal growth and acquisition growstrategies, general economic and business dondspecific to our primary custome
changes in government regulations, our ability ffeeively integrate businesses we may acquire, aewodified statutory or regulato
requirements and changing prices and market commsti This Report identifies other factors that doohuse such differences. We ca
assure that these are all of the factors that caadse actual results to vary materially from theafard4ooking statements. Factors that cc
cause or contribute to such differences include, dre not limited to, those discussed in "Risk Beglt, and elsewhere in this Report.
assume no obligation and do not intend to updassahforwardooking statements. Unless the context otherwigeires, references in tt
Report to the "Company", "DXP“we” or “our” shall mean DXP Enterprises, Inc., aéixas corporation, together with its subsidiaries.




PART |
ITEM 1. Business
Company Overview

DXP was incorporated in Texas in 1996 to be theassor to SEPCO Industries, Inc., founded in 1$0&e our predecessor company
founded, we have primarily been engaged in thenlessi of distributing maintenance, repair and opeygMRO) products, equipment ¢
service to industrial customers. The Company iswoized into three business segments: Service Ge@apply Chain Services and Innova
Pumping Solutions. Sales, operating income, anerdihancial information for 2011, 2012 and 2013 édentifiable assets at the close of ¢
years for our business segments are presentedténl¥amf the Notes to the Consolidated Financiateéstents in Item 8 of this repa

Our total sales have increased from $125 millionl@96 to $1.2 billion in 2013 through a combinatiohinternal growth and busine
acquisitions. At December 31, 2013 we operated ft@@ locations in thirtyeight states in the U.S., nine provinces in Canadd,one state
Mexico, serving more than 50,000 customers engagedvariety of industrial end markets. We havengresales and profitability by addi
additional products, services, locations and bengmustomer driven experts in maintenance, repairogperating solutions.

Our principal executive office is located at 727RdMmont Houston, Texas 77040, and our telephonebeuiis (713) 996+700. Our websi
address on the Internet is www.dxpe.com and emadlg be sent to info@dxpe.com. The reference toamlnsite address does not const
incorporation by reference of the information cam¢éal on the website and such information shouldoeatonsidered part of this report.

Industry Overview

The industrial distribution market is highly fragned. Based on 2012 sales as reported by InduBlis&iibution magazine, we were the 1
largest distributor of MRO products in the Unitetht8s. Most industrial customers currently purchtssr industrial supplies throu
numerous local distribution and supply companidsesk distributors generally provide the customeh wepair and maintenance servi
technical support and application expertise witkpeet to one product category. Products typicaklypmurchased by the distributor for re:
directly from the manufacturer and warehoused sttiution facilities of the distributor until sotd the customer. The customer also typic
will purchase an amount of product inventory farrear term anticipated needs and store those gmodtiits industrial site until the prodt
are used.

We believe that the distribution system for indiastproducts, as described in the preceding papdigrareates inefficiencies at both
customer and the distributor levels through exdegsntory requirements and duplicative cost stmeguTo compete more effectively,
customers and other users of MRO products are rsgekays to enhance efficiencies and lower MRO pcodund procurement costs.
response to this customer desire, three primangsrdave emerged in the industrial supply industry:

« Industry ConsolidationIndustrial customers have reduced the number oplmrprelationships they maintain to lower t
purchasing costs, improve inventory managementjrassonsistently high levels of customer servicd anhance purchasi
power. This focus on fewer suppliers has led tosobidation within the fragmented industrial distriton industry.

« Customized Integrated Servidks industrial customers focus on their core martuféieg or other production competencies, 1
increasingly are demanding customized integratiervises, consisting of valuedded traditional distribution, supply ch
services, modular equipment and repair and maintsnservices

« Single Source, First-Tier Distributiords industrial customers continue to address costadoment, there is a trend tow
reducing the number of suppliers and eliminatindtiple tiers of distribution. Therefore, to loweverall costs to the custom
some MRO distributors are expanding their prodosecage to eliminate secc-tier distributors and become*one stop sour(”.

We believe we have increased our competitive adggnthrough our traditional fabrication of integhsystem pump packages and integ
supply programs, which are designed to addressusipmersspecific product and procurement needs. We offecastomers various optic
for the integration of their supply needs, rangirmm serving as a single source of supply for allspecific lines of products and prod
categories to offering a fully integrated supplckege in which we assume the procurement and maragefunctions, which can inclu
ownership of inventory, at the customer's locat@ar approach to integrated supply allows us tageea program that best fits the needs o
customer. Customers purchasing large quantitiggaduct are able to outsource all or most of thoseds to us. For customers with sm
supply needs, we are able to combine our traditidistribution capabilities with our broad prodwettegories and advanced ordering systel
allow the customer to engage in one-stop sourcitigowt the commitment required under an integratguply contract.

Business Segments

The Company is organized into three business segmeervice Centers, Supply Chain Services (SC8)lanovative Pumping Solutio
(IPS). Our segments provide management with a cehgmsive financial view of our key businesses. 3égments enable the alignmen
strategies and objectives and provide a framewarkihely and rational allocation of resources witbur businesses.

Service Centers

The Service Centers are engaged in providing MR&@lyxts, equipment and integrated services, inctutichnical expertise and logis

capabilities, to industrial customers with the ipito provide same day delivery. We offer our cusérs a single source of supply or
efficient and competitive basis by being a -tier distributor that can purchase products diyefrttm manufacturers. As a fi-tier distributor



we are able to reduce our customers' costs andoirapefficiencies in the supply chain. We also pdeviservices such as field sa
supervision, ifhouse and field repair and predictive maintenaWée offer a wide range of industrial MRO productgui@ment and integrat
services through a continuum of customized andiefit MRO solutions.
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Generally our Service Centers segment does not iemdelong-term contracts with our customers reiggi them to purchase our products. A
majority of our Service Center segment sales ar@efkfrom customer purchase orders. Sales aretbjirgolicited from customers by our sales
force. DXP Service Centers are stocked and staffddknowledgeable sales associates and backedbytealized customer service team of
experienced industry professionals. At DecembeRB13, our Service Centers’ products and serviare @istributed from 171 service centers
and 7 distribution centers.

DXP Service Centers provide a wide range of MRQdpots in the rotating equipment, bearing, powendmgission, hose, fluid power, me
working, industrial supply and safety product aad/ge categories. We currently serve as a fiestdistributor of more than 1,000,000 item
which more than 60,000 are stock keeping units (§Kfdr use primarily by customers engaged in tHeaod gas, food and bevers
petrochemical, transportation and other generaustréhl industries. Other industries served by @&earvice Centers include minii
construction, chemical, municipal, agriculture gndp and paper.

The Service Centers segment’s long-lived assetaated in both the United States and Canada. dxupately 16.1% of the Service Center’
segment revenues were in Canada and the remairderiktually all in the U.S.

At December 31, 2013, the Service Centers segnaghapproximately 2,483 full-time employees.
Supply Chain Services

DXP’s Supply Chain Services segment manages gladrof its customerssupply chains including procurement and inventognagemenr
The Supply Chain Services segment enters into terg-contracts with its customers that can be ditten little or no notice under cert
circumstances. Supply Chain Services provideslya uitsourced MRO solution including: inventory mpization and management; store rc
management; transaction consolidation and conteidor oversight and procurement cost optimizatfmoductivity improvement service
and customized reporting. Our mission is to help @stomers become more competitive by reducing thdirect material costs and or
cycle time by increasing productivity and by cregtenterprise-wide inventory and procurement Vigjband control.

DXP has developed assessment tools and mastetepigriates aimed at taking cost out of supply clpagtesses, streamlining operations
boosting productivity. This mulfiaceted approach allows us to manage the entinenehdor maximum efficiency and optimal control, iat
ultimately provides our customers with a low-cagtision.

DXP takes a consultative approach to determinetitemgths and opportunities for improvement withicustomes indirect supply chain. Tt
assessment determines if and how we can best dimeaaperations, drive value within the procuremenicess, and increase contra
storeroom management.

Decades of supply chain inventory management espegi and comprehensive research, as well as autfformnderstanding of our customers
businesses and industries have allowed us to desamdardized programs that are flexible enougthedfully adaptable to address
customers’ unique supply chain challenges. Thes®lardized programs include:

« SmartAgreement, a planned, pro-active procurenwuatisn for MRO categories leveraging DXP’s locarice Centers.

« SmartBuy, DXP’s on-site or centralized MRO procueatsolution.

« SmartSourcéM, DXP’s on-site procurement and storeroom managetneBXP personnel.

« SmartStore, DXP’s customized e-Catalog solution.

« SmartVend, DXP’s industrial dispensing solutionallbws for inventorylevel optimization, user accountability and itenages reductio
by 2(-40% anc

« SmartServ, DXF integrated service pump solution. It providesaarefficient way to manage the entire life cycdlgpomping systen
and rotating equipmer

DXP’s SmartSolutions programs help customers to cudymtocosts, improve supply chain efficiencies abthim expert technical suppc
DXP represents manufacturers of up to 90% of al maintenance, repair and operating products ofcogtomers. Unlike many ott
distributors who buy products from second-tier sesr DXP takes customers to the source of the ptedey need.

At December 31, 2013, the Supply Chain Servicemsag operated supply chain installations in sixtg-(62) of our customers’ facilities.

At December 31, 2013, all of the Supply Chain Smrsisegment’s lonklived assets are located in the U.S. and all of3264les wel
recognized in the U.S.

At December 31, 2013, the Supply Chain Servicemseg had approximately 242 full-time employees.
Innovative Pumping Solutions
DXP’s Innovative Pumping Solutions@gment provides fabrication and technical desigmeet the capital equipment needs of our g

customer base. DXB’'Innovative Pumping Solutions provides a singlerse for engineering, systems design and fabrigatibintegrate
pump packages custom-made to customer specifisation




Our sales of custom integrated pump packages amergéy derived from customer purchase orders doing the customersprojec
specifications. Sales are directly solicited fromstomers by our sales force.

DXP’s engineering staff can design a complete eungtamp package to meet our customersject specifications. Drafting programs suc
Solidworks® and AutoCAD@allow our engineering team to verify the design &but of packages with our customers prior to steat o
fabrication. Finite Elemental Analysis programsltsas Cosmos Professionat®e used to design the package to meet all nornthfwture
loads and forces. This process helps maximize thgppackages’ life and minimizes any impact togheironment.

With over 100 years of fabrication experience, D@3 acquired the technical expertise to ensureotirapumps and pump packages are
to meet the highest standards. DXP utilizes manurfac authorized equipment and manufacturer cedifiersonnel. Pump packages rec
MRO and original equipment manufacturer®EM) equipment such as pumps, motors, valves, andumable products, such as wel
supplies. DXP leverages its MRO product inventoaed breadth of authorized products to lower thal fmost and maintain the quality of
pump package.

DXP’s fabrication facilities provide convenient tectalisupport and pump repair services. The facilitiestain state of the art equipmen
provide the technical services our customers regoeluding:

« Structural welding

« Pipe welding

o Custom skid assembly

« Custom coatings

« Hydrostatic pressure testing
« Mechanical string testing

Examples of our innovative pump packages include:

« Diesel and electric driven firewater packages

« Pipeline booster packages

- Potable water packages

« Pigging pump packages

o Lease Automatic Custody Transfer (“LACT") chargetsin
« Chemical injection pump packages wash down units

« Seawater lift pump packages

« Jockey pump packages

« Condensate pump packages

« Cooling water packages

« Seawater/produced water injection packages

« Variety of packages to meet customer required imgigpecifications such as APIl, ANSI and NFPA

At December 31, 2013, the Innovative Pumping Sohgisegment operated out of ten facilities, eighwitch are located in the United Ste
and two in Canada.

Approximately 5.3% of the Innovative Pumping Salas segment’s lonlived assets are located in Canada and the remaiaiein the U.¢
Approximately 11.2% of the Innovative Pumping Smlots segment 2013 revenues were recognized in Camaldéhe remainder was virtua
all in the U.S.

At December 31, 2013, the Innovative Pumping Sohgisegment had approximately 209 full-time empdsye
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Products

Most industrial customers currently purchase tMRO supplies through local or national distributicompanies that are focused on sing
unique product categories. As a fittr distributor, our network of service and distriion centers stock more than 60,000 SKUs andige
customers with access to more than 1,000,000 it&nsen our breadth of product and our industrigtritbution customers focus arot
specific product categories we have become custadimieen experts in five key product categories.sdish, our three business segment:
supported by these five key product categoriesuding, rotating equipment, bearings & power trarssion, industrial supplies, metal work
and safety products & services. Each business sggtaiors its inventory and leverages product etpéo meet the needs of its Ic
customers.

Key product categories that we offer include:

« Rotating Equipment . Our rotating equipment products include a fulkliof centrifugal pumps for transfer and processice
applications, such as petrochemicals, refining emudie oil production; rotary gear pumps for low- meedium pressure serv
applications, such as pumping lubricating oils atler viscous liquids; plunger and piston pumps High{pressure servis
applications such as disposal of produced watercamnde oil pipeline service; and aperated diaphragm pumps. We also prc
a large variety of pump accessori

« Bearings & Power Transmission. Our bearing products include several types of mexliand umnounted bearings for a varii
of applications. The power transmission productsdigtribute include speed reducers, flexibaipling drives, chain drive
sprockets, gears, conveyors, clutches, brakes asab|

« Industrial Supplies . We offer a broad range of industrial supplieshsas abrasives, tapes and adhesive productshgeatn
lubricants, fasteners, hand tools, janitorial pidupneumatic tools, welding supplies and wel@iggipment

« Metal Working . Our metal working products include a broad raafjeutting tools, abrasives, coolants, gauges, strdl tools
and machine shop supplit

» Safety Products & Services We provide safety services including hydrogeriidgel(H , S) gas protection and safety, special
and standby fire protection, safety supervisioaining, monitoring, equipment rental and consulti®gr safety services inclu
safety supervision, medic services, safety audittrument repair and calibration, training, moriitg, equipment rental a
consulting. Additionally, we sell safety producteluding eye and face protection, first aid, hanotgction, hazardous matel
handling, instrumentation and respiratory protetpooducts.

We acquire our products through numerous OEMs. Weaathorized to distribute certain manufactungrstiucts only in specific geograp
areas. All of our oral or written distribution aatizations are subject to cancellation by the maciwfrer, some upon little or no notice. For
last three fiscal years, no manufacturer providedipcts that accounted for 10% or more of our raesnWe believe that alternative source
supply could be obtained in a timely manner if drstribution authorization were canceled. Accordimgve do not believe that the loss of
one distribution authorization would have a matex@verse effect on our business, financial coaditir results of operations.

The Company has operations in the United Statésndrica, Canada and Mexico. Information regardingricial data by geographic areg
set forth in Item 8 of this Annual Report on ForGtK. See Note 16 of Notes to Consolidated Finariatements under Item 8.

Recent Acquisitions

A key component of our growth strategy includegetihg acquisitions of businesses with complemgmardesirable product lines, locatit
or customers. Since 2004, we have completed 29isitigns across our three business segments. Bsl@avsummary of recent acquisitit
since the beginning of 2009.

On April 1, 2010, DXP acquired substantially ak thssets of Quadna, Inc. (“Quadndme purchase price of approximately $25.0 milliae!
of $3.0 million of acquired cash) consisted of $dillion paid in cash, $10 million in the form of weertible promissory notes bearing inte
at a rate of 10% and approximately $4.0 millionthe form of 343,337 shares of DXP common stock. $h# million cash portion of tl
purchase price was funded by borrowings under BXisting credit facility. DXP completed this aijtion to expand its pump busines:
the Western U.S. On April 9, 2010, $4.5 million mmipal amount of the convertible promissory not@eng with accrued interest, w
converted into 376,417 shares of DXRommon stock. On August 18, 2010, $3.7 milliortheff convertible promissory notes were paic
using funds obtained from DX®'credit facility and $1.8 million of the convetgbpromissory notes were converted to 117,374 shafr®XF
common stock.




On November 30, 2010, DXP acquired substantiallypfathe assets of D&F Distributors, Inc. (‘“D&F"Yhe purchase price of $13.4 mill
consisted of approximately $7.4 million paid inttagpproximately $2.9 million in the form of prorsé@y notes bearing interest at a rate of
and approximately $3.1 million in the form of 15833shares of DXP common stock. The cash portioth@fpurchase price was fundec
borrowings under DXR existing credit facility. DXP completed this aggition to expand its pump business in Indiana, tideky, Tennesst
and Ohio.

On October 10, 2011, DXP acquired substantiallyo&lthe assets of Kenneth Crosby ("KC"). DXP acedithis business to expand DX
geographic presence in the eastern U.S. and stem@XP's metal working and supply chain servidésrings. DXP paid approximately $1!
million for KC, which was borrowed under our exisficredit facility.

On December 30, 2011, DXP acquired substantiallpfaihe assets of C.W. Rod Tool Company ("CW Ro®XP acquired this business
strengthen DXP's metal working offering in Texad aouisiana. DXP paid approximately $1.1 million@XP's common stock (35,714 sha
and approximately $42 million in cash for CW Rodhieh was borrowed during 2011 and 2012 under oistiag credit facility.

On January 31, 2012, DXP acquired substantiallypfaithe assets of Mid-Continent Safety ("M@bntinent”). DXP acquired this busines:
expand DXP's geographic presence in the MidwedieBn and strengthen DXP's safety products offefdP paid approximately $3.7 millic
for Mid-Continent, which was borrowed under ourstixig credit facility.

On February 29, 2012, DXP acquired substantiallpfathe assets of Pump & Power Equipment, Incufip & Power"). DXP acquired tt
business to expand DXP's geographic presence iMithwestern U.S. and strengthen DXP's municipal pproducts and services offeri
DXP paid approximately $1.9 million for Pump & Pawehich was borrowed under our existing creditlfaci

On April 2, 2012, DXP acquired the stock of Aledtw;. ("Aledco") and Force Engineered Products, (Heorce”). DXP acquired this busine
to establish a presence within the Marcellus Shadewell as the Northeast United States industatdting equipment market. DXP p
approximately $8.1 million for Aledco and Force aiiwas borrowed under our existing credit facility.

On May 1, 2012, DXP completed the acquisition oflustrial Paramedic Services through its wholly osvrsaibsidiary, DXP Cana
Enterprises Ltd. Industrial Paramedic Servicespsaaider of industrial medical and safety servite@dustrial customers operating in ren
locations and large facilities in western CanaddPDacquired this business to expand DXP's geogramtéisence into Canada and to ex|
our safety services offering. Industrial Paramegticvices is headquartered in Calgary, Alberta getaies out of three locations in Calg
Nisku and Dawson Creek. The $25.3 million purchasee was financed with $20.6 million of borrowingsder DXP's existing credit facili
$2.5 million of promissory notes bearing a 5% iagtrate and 19,685 shares of DXP common stock.

On May 31, 2012, DXP completed the acquisition ab#n and Denholm Industrial Sales Alberta, Inc[P1h. DXP acquired this business
expand our presence in pumping solutions in Westarmada. DXP Canada Enterprises Ltd., acquiredf &fle outstanding common share
ADI for $2.7 million which was borrowed under owigting credit facility.

On July 11, 2012, DXP completed the acquisitio8E Integrated Ltd. (iISE"). DXP Canada Enterprises Ltd. acquired athefoutstandin
common shares of HSE by way of a plan of arrangémeder theBusiness Corporations A¢Alberta) (the "Arrangement"). Pursuant to
Arrangement, HSE shareholders received CDN $1.8@ash per each common share of HSE held. The tmabkaction value w
approximately $85 million, including approximatebd million in debt and approximately $3 million iransaction costs. The purchase
was financed with borrowings under DXPhew $325 million credit facility. DXP acquired HSo expand our industrial health and s
services offering in Canada and the United States.

On October 1, 2012, DXP acquired substantiallyoalthe assets of Jerzy Supply, Inc. (“JerzypXP acquired this business in the Soutl
U.S. to strengthen DXP's industrial and hydrautisénoffering. DXP paid approximately $5.3 milliaor flerzy which was borrowed under
existing credit facility.

On April 16, 2013, DXP acquired all of the stockMN#étional Process Equipment Inc. (“NatPrafijyough its wholly owned subsidiary, D.
Canada Enterprises Ltd. DXP acquired this busitegxpand DXP’s geographic presence in Canada taexgshen DXPS pump, integrate
system packaging, compressor, and related equipofiening. The $40.1 million purchase price wasfined with $36.6 million of borrowin
under DXP's existing credit facility and 52,542 saof DXP common stock. Additionally, the purchasgeement includes an earat
provision, which states that former owners of NatRray earn CDN $6.0 million based on achievemerdrogarnings target during the 1
year of DXFs ownership. The fair value of the easat recorded at the acquisition date was $2.8 anillAs of December 31, 2013 the §
million accrued liability associated with this earat provision was reversed and included in 201&afing income.

On May 17, 2013, DXP acquired substantially altte assets of Tucker Tool Company, Inc. (“TuckeolTio DXP acquired this business
expand DXP's geographic presence in the northe®h &hd strengthen DXP's industrial cutting toolerfig. DXP paid approximately $¢
million for Tucker Tool which was borrowed under@&xisting credit facility.

On July 1, 2103, DXP acquired all of the stock ¢dgka Pump & Supply, Inc. (APS). DXP acquired thisiness to expand DXP's geogra
presence in Alaska. DXP paid approximately $13.Mionifor APS which was borrowed under our existargdit facility.

On July 31, 2103, DXP acquired substantially altred assets of Tool-Tech Industrial Machine & Sypphc. (“Tool-Tech”).DXP acquire:
this business to enhance our metal working prodffeting in the southwest region of the United &satDXP paid approximately $7.2 milli
for Tool-Tech which was borrowed under our existingdit facility.






Competition

Our business is highly competitive. In the Sen@mnters segment we compete with a variety of im@hsupply distributors, some of whi
may have greater financial and other resources Wemnlo. Some of our competitors are small entexprielling to customers in a limi
geographic area. We also compete with catalogiloligtrs, large warehouse stores and, to a lesgentexnanufacturers. While many of
competitors offer traditional distribution of sorakthe product groupings that we offer, we areawéare of any major competitor that offers
a noneatalog basis a variety of products and servicebraad as our offering. Further, while certain tmgadistributors provide prodt
offerings as broad as ours, these competitors toffer the product application, technical expertand after-thesale services that we provi
In the Supply Chain Services segment we compete laiger distributors that provide integrated sypmlograms and outsourcing servit
some of which might be able to supply their produot a more efficient and cosftfective manner than we can provide. In the Intive
Pumping Solutions segment we compete against a&tyaof manufacturers, distributors and fabricatangny of which may have gree
financial and other resources than we do. We gépe@mpete on service and price in all of our segts.

Insurance

We maintain liability and other insurance that vetidwe to be customary and generally consistert imidustry practice. We retain a portior
the risk for medical claims, general liability, Wer's compensation and property losses. The variousatibtes of our insurance polic
generally do not exceed $250,000 per occurrencerelére also certain risks for which we do not n@@minsurance. There can be no assui
that such insurance will be adequate for the riskslved, that coverage limits will not be exceedmdthat such insurance will apply to
liabilities. The occurrence of an adverse clainextess of the coverage limits that we maintain d¢dwdve a material adverse effect on
financial condition and results of operations. Phemiums for insurance have increased significamilyr the past three years. This trend ¢
continue. Additionally, we are partially self-ingdr for our group health plan, workercompensation, auto liability and general liag
insurance. The cost of claims for the group healtin has increased over the past three yearstrenid is expected to continue.

Government Regulation and Environmental Matters

We are subject to various laws and regulationgingldo our business and operations, and varioaftthand safety regulations as establishe
the Occupational Safety and Health Administratiod &anadian Occupational Health and Safety.

Certain of our operations are subject to fedetatesand local laws and regulations as well asipoiad regulations controlling the discharge
materials into or otherwise relating to the pratacif the environment. Although we believe thateeve adequate procedures to comply
applicable discharge and other environmental l&lesrisks of accidental contamination or injurynfréhe discharge of controlled or hazarc
materials and chemicals cannot be eliminated cawiglein the event of such a discharge, we couldhédd liable for any damages that re:
and any such liability could have a material adeesffect on us. We are not currently aware of dtwagson or condition that we believe
likely to have a material adverse effect on ouultesof operations or financial condition.

Employees

At December 31, 2013, DXP had approximately 3,2@0Ftfme employees. We believe that we maintain pasitelationships with all of o
employees. Less than one percent (1%) of our erapbgre unionized.

Background of Executive Officers

The following is a list of DXPs executive officers, their age, positions, aneéscdption of their business experience as of Marth2014. Al
of our executive officers hold office at the pleasaf DXP’s Board of Directors.

NAME POSITION AGE
David R. Little Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeeubifficer 62
Mac McConnell Senior Vice President/Finance, Chief Financial &ffiand Secreta 60
David C. Vinsor Senior Vice President/Innovative Pumping Soluti 63
John J. Jeffer Senior Vice President/Supply Chain Services & Manig 46
Todd Hamlin Senior Vice President/Service Cent 42
Kent Yee Senior Vice President/Corporate Developrr 38
Wayne Crant Senior Vice President/Information Technolc 51
Gary Messersmit Senior Vice President/General Cour 65

David R. Little. Mr. Little has served as Chairman of the Boamsklent and Chief Executive Officer of DXP sint®arganization in 19¢
and also has held these positions with SEPCO Iridastnc., predecessor to the Company (“SEPCS$ige he acquired a controlling inte
in SEPCO in 1986. Mr. Little has been employed IBPSO since 1975 in various capacities, includingffShccountant, Controller, Vic
President/Finance and President. Mr. Little givas Board insight and inepth knowledge of our industry and our specifierations an
strategies. He also provides leadership skillslarmiviedge of our local community and business emvitent, which he has gained througt
long career with DXP and its predecessor companies.

Mac McConnell.Mr. McConnell was elected Senior Vice Presiden#ifte and Chief Financial Officer in September 208@m Februar
1998 until September 2000, Mr. McConnell servedSasior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer aaddirector of Transportati
Components, Inc., a NY&listed distributor of truck parts. From DecembeB290 February 1998, he served as Chief Financifited of



Sterling Electronics Corporation, a NY3iEted electronics parts distributor, which was w@ced by Marshall Industries, Inc. in 1998. Fi
1990 to 1992, Mr. McConnell was Vice President-Rize of Interpak Holdings, Inc., a publidsaded company involved in packaging
warehousing thermoplastic resins. From 1976 to 1B8G&erved in various capacities, including aaréngr, with Ernst & Young LLP.

David C. VinsonMr. Vinson was elected Senior Vice President/IntimgaPumping Solutions in January 2006. He sen&d®anior Vic
President/Operations of DXP from October 2000 tocddeber 2005. From 1996 until October 2000, Mr. ¥msserved as Vi
President/Traffic, Logistics and Inventory. Mr. ¥om has served in various capacities with DXP sirisemployment in 1981.
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John J. Jeffer. Mr. Jeffery was elected Senior Vice Presider8ugiply Chain Services and Marketing in June 2010.Jkffery joined the
Company 1991 when DXP acquired T. L. Walker. Hesleaged in various capacities with DXP since hipleyment, including sales
representative, branch and area management, Viesient of Marketing, Sales Vice President forGldf Coast Region and Senior Vice
President of Sales & Marketin

Todd Hamlin. Mr. Hamlin was elected Senior Vice President off/bService Centers in June of 2010. Mr. Hamlin jdittee Company in 199
From February 2006 until June 2010 he served a®Ralgvice President of the Gulf Coast Region. Prioserving as Regional Vice President
of the Gulf Coast Region he served in various ciipacincluding application engineer, product spkst and sales representative. From April
2005 through February 2006, Mr. Hamlin worked aslas manager for the UPS Supply Chain Servicésialivof United Parcel Service, Inc.
He holds a Bachelors of Science in Industrial astion from Texas A&M University and a Master insfibution from Texas A&M

University. Mr. Hamlin serves on the Advisory Bodiod Texas A&M’s Master in Distribution degree prag.

Kent Yee. Mr. Yee currently serves as Senior Vice Presideotporate Development and leads DXP's mergersaandisitions, busine
integration and internal strategic project actesti During March 2011, Mr. Yee joined DXP from Steps Inc.'s Industrial Distribution &
Services team where he served in various posiaodsmost recently as Vice President from Augusb200February 2011. Prior to Stepht
Mr. Yee was a member of The Home DepdSBtrategic Business Development Group with a pgnfi@acus on acquisition activity for F
Supply. Mr. Yee was also an Associate in the di&adicated Finance Group at JPMorgan Chase. deekacuted over 39 transacti
including more than $1.2 billion in M&A and $2.8Ilin in financing transactions primarily for changf control deals and numerous indus
and distribution acquisition and sale assignméti¢ésholds a Bachelors of Arts in Urban Planning fristorehouse College and an MBA fri
Harvard University Graduate School of Business.

Wayne Crane Wayne Crane currently serves as Senior Vice Presiled Chief Information Officer and leads DXP'®imation technolog
and telecommunications activities. Joining DXP ing@ist 2011, Mr. Crane offers 25 years experiencectiing business and technoli
transformation for Fortune 1000 corporations artteotechnology based compani®sior to DXP, Mr. Crane served as Chief Informa
Officer for CDS Global, a global technology solutsoprovider and wholly owned subsidiary of the lde&orporation. Until 2008, Mr. Cra
served as CIlO for the Attachmate/NetlQ, a publcatided systems and security management softveen@any, where he was responsible
all technology efforts, including several businessl product lines. Previously, Mr. Crane managedajltechnology efforts for BJ Servi
Company, a publicly traded oilfield services compavir. Crane holds a Master of Computer Scienceategnd an MBA.

Gary MessersmithMr. Messersmith serves as Senior Vice PresidahiGeneral Counsel of DXP Enterprises, Inc. Mr. $éesmith joined
DXP on January 1, 2013 after practicing law for enbran 38 years with Looper Reed & McGraw and godhat with Fouts & Moore. Durin
this period, Mr. Messersmith’s practice includedpmoate, real estate and oil and gas matters. E&82 until 2001, Gary served as Managing
Partner of Fouts & Moore. Since 1995, Gary hasasgmted DXP in the acquisition of more than 27 camigs and he has provided legal
services to DXP in various other areas. Gary obthinis Bachelor of Science Degree in Finance frotiiaha University in 1971 and his J.D.
from South Texas School of Law in 1975.

All officers of DXP hold office until the regular eeting of the board of directors following the Aahieeting of Shareholders or until tt
respective successors are duly elected and qukdifitheir earlier resignation or removal.

Available Informatior

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly ReporigForm 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and amends to those reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of3keurities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended (tkehi&hge Act”), are available free of
charge through our Internet website ( www.dxpe.3@s soon as reasonably practicable after we etactlly file such material with, or
furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Comrmissi

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors

Investing in DXP involves risk. In deciding whettterinvest in DXP, you should carefully considee fbllowing risk factors. Any of these ri
factors could have a significant or material adeezffect on our businesses, results of operatiimesncial condition or liquidity. They cou
also cause significant fluctuations and volatilitythe trading price of our securities. Readersuhmot consider any descriptions of tF
factors to be a complete set of all potential risiat could affect DXP. These factors should besm®red carefully together with the ot
information contained in this report and the ottegrorts and materials filed by us with the Secesititnd Exchange Commission. Further, r
of these risks are interrelated and could occueusinilar business and economic conditions, aedtiturrence of certain of them may in
cause the emergence or exacerbate the effect @fsotBuch a combination could materially incre&geseverity of the impact of these risk
our results of operations, liquidity and finanatahdition.

Decreased capital expenditures in the energy ingliustin adversely impact our custon’ demand for our products and services.

A significant portion of our revenue depends uganléevel of capital and operating expenditureshi@ ¢il and natural gas industry, includil
capital expenditures in connection with the upstneaidstream, and downstream phases in the enedygiry. Therefore, a significant decl
in oil or natural gasprices could lead to a decrease in our customagstal and other expenditures and could adverdédgteour revenues.

Demand for our products could decrease if the mactufers of those products sell them directly td esers

Typically, MRO products have been purchased thraiigtiibutors and not directly from the manufactaref those products. If customers w
to purchase our products directly from manufacsyrer if manufacturers sought to increase theor&ffto sell directly to end users, we co



experience a significant decrease in sales andngatn




Changes in our customer and product mix, or advetsgnges to the cost of goods we sell, could causegross margin percentage
fluctuate, or decrease and we may not be able totaia historical margins

Changes in our customer mix have resulted from ggabgc expansion, daily selling activities withiarcent geographic markets, and targ
selling activities to new customers. Changes in paduct mix have resulted from marketing actiti® existing customers and ne
communicated to us from existing and prospectiv&amers. There can be no assurance that we widbleto maintain our historical gr
margins. In addition, we may also be subject togimcreases from vendors that we may not be alpads along to our customers .

We rely upon third-party transportatiogproviders for our merchandise shipments and argesuilio increased shipping costs as well as
potential inability of outthird-party transportation providers to deliver piocts on a timely basis.

We rely upon independent third-party transportatmoviders for our merchandise shipments, inclughgpments to and from all of our
service centers. Our utilization of these delivegyvices for shipments is subject to risks, inelgdncreases in fuel prices, labor availability,
labor strikes andnclement weather, which may impact a shipping camys ability to provide delivery services that gdately meet our
shipping needs. If we change the shipping compaméegse, we could face logistical difficulties ticauld adversely affect deliveries and we
would incur costs and expend resources in conmewtith such change. In addition, we may not be #&blebtain favorable terms as we have
with our current third-party transportation prowvisle

Adverse weather events or natural disasters coafghtively disrupt our operation

Certain areas in which we operate are suscepbtldeierse weather conditions or natural disasters) as hurricanes, tornadoes, floods and
earthquakes. These events can disrupt our opesatiesult in damage to our properties and neggtaééct the local economies in which we
operate. Additionally, we may experience commuimecadlisruptions with our customers, vendors andleyges.

We cannot predict whether or to what extent dantagised by these events will affect our operatiorte@economies in regions where we
operate. These adverse events could result inpdisruof our purchasing or distribution capabibtiénterruption of our business that exceeds
our insurance coverage, our inability to collecnfrcustomers and increased operating costs. Oindsssor results of operations may be
adversely affected by these and other negativetsftd# these events.

The loss of or the failure to attract and retairylgersonnel could adversely impact our resultspefrations.

The loss of the services of any of the executiicerfs of the Company could have a material advefsect on our financial condition a
results of operations. In addition, our abilitygww successfully will be dependent upon our apilit attract and retain qualified manager
and technical and operational personnel. The faitarattract and retain such persons could mateaadlersely affect our financial conditi
and results of operations.

The loss of any key supplier could adversely affed®’s sales and profitability.

We have distribution rights for certain productenand depend on these distribution rights forbstsumtial portion of our business. Many
these distribution rights are pursuant to contrdwis are subject to cancellation upon little ompmi@r notice. Although we believe that we cc
obtain alternate distribution rights in the evehsuach a cancellation, the termination or limitatiny any key supplier of its relationship with
Company could result in a temporagisruption of our business and, in turn, could asely affect our results of operations and finak
condition.

We are subject to various government regulations.

We are subject to laws and regulations in everngdgiotion where we operate. Compliance with lawd eggulations increase our cost of d¢
business. We are subject to a variety of laws agdlations, including without limitation import amcport requirements, the Foreign Cor
Practices Act, tax laws (including U.S. taxes onfoueign subsidiaries), data privacy requiremelatsor laws and antempetition regulation
We are also subject to audits and inquiries indtténary course of business. Changes to the leghakegulatory environments could incre
the cost of doing business, and such costs magaserin the future as a result of changes in fa@seand regulations or in their interpretat
Although we have implemented policies and procesludesigned to comply with laws and regulationsyrehean be no assurance
employees, contractors or agents will not violatehslaws and regulations. Any such violations canttividually or in the aggregate materi:
adversely affect our financial condition or resat®perations.

We are subject to environmental, health and sdéstg and regulations.

We are subject to federal, state, local, foreiga provincial environmental, health and safety land regulations. Fines and penalties me
imposed for noreompliance with applicable environmental, healtd aafety requirements and the failure to have aotoply with the terrr
and conditions of required permits. The failureusyto comply with applicable environmental, healtid safety requirements could resu
fines, penalties, enforcement actions, third paldyms for property damage and personal injuryuiregnents to clean up property or to pay
the costs of cleanup, or regulatory or judicialesedrequiring corrective measures.

A general slowdown in the economy could negativepact DXFs sales growth.

Economic and industry trends affect DXRjusiness. Demand for our products is subjectémanic trends affecting our customers anc
industries in which they compete in particular. Manf these industries, such as the oil and gassimguare subject to volatility while othe



such as the petrochemical industry, are cyclicdl materially affected by changes in the economyaAssult, demand for our products ct
be adversely impacted by changes in the markeisrofustomers. We traditionally do not enter imtiod-term contracts with our customers.
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Risks Associated With Conducting Business in For€iguntries

We conduct a meaningful amount of business outsfdiéne United States of America. We could be addgraffected by economic, leg
political and regulatory developments in countrtat we conduct business in. We have meaningfutatipes in Canada in which 1
functional currency is denominated in CanadianaiellAs the value of currencies in foreign coustirewhich we have operations increas
decrease related to the U.S. dollar, the saleseresgs, profits, losses assets and liabilities af foreign operations, as reported in
consolidated financial statements, increase oredeer, accordingly.

The trading price of our common stock may be Jelati

The market price of our common stock could be sliwide fluctuations in response to, among othirgs, the risk factors described in this
and other periodic reports, and other factors beéyam control, such as fluctuations in the valuatid companies perceived by investors to be
comparable to us. Furthermore, the stock markets baperienced price and volume fluctuations tlaehaffected and continue to affect the
market prices of equity securities of many companidese fluctuations often have been unrelatatisproportionate to the operating
performance of those companies. These broad mankkeindustry fluctuations, as well as general eognppolitical, and market conditions,
such as recessions, interest rate changes oratitamal currency fluctuations, may negatively affdse market price of our common stock. In
the past, many companies that have experiencedlirplim the market price of their stock have bemrbject to securities class action litigation
We may be the target of this type of litigatiorthe future. Securities litigation against us cadsult in substantial costs and divert our
management's attention from other business conoshish could adversely affect our business.

Our future results will be impacted by our abilityimplement our internal growth strategy.

Our future results will depend in part on our swscen implementing our internal growth strategy,ichhincludes expanding our exist
geographic areas, selling additional products tstiexgy customers and adding new customers. Ouityatnl implement this strategy will depe
on our success in selling more products and seyviceexisting customers, acquiring new customeirsndh qualified sales persons, ¢
marketing integrated forms of supply managemenh siscthose being pursued by us through our Smat&8¥program. Although we intel
to increase sales and product offerings to existiugjomers, there can be no assurance that weevdliccessful in these efforts. Addition:
we sell products and services in very competitiarkats. We could experience a material adverseteffethe extent that our competitors
successful in reducing our customegpsirchases of products and services from us. Cotigretiould also cause us to lower our prices, W
could reduce our margins and profitability. Condation in our industry could heighten the impadtsampetition on our business and res
of operations discussed above. The fact that weaddraditionally enter into longerm contracts with our suppliers or customers iprayide
opportunities for our competitors.

We are subject to personal injury and product lipiclaims involving allegedly defective products.

A variety of products we distribute are used ingotially hazardous applications that can resuttarsonal injury and product liability claims
catastrophic occurrence at a location where thdymts we distribute are used may result in us bearged as a defendant in lawsuits asse
potentially large claims, even though we did nohofacture the products, and applicable law mayeend liable for damages without reg
to negligence or fault.

Risks Associated With Acquisition Strat

Our future results will depend in part on our apilio successfully implement our acquisition stggteWe may not be able to consumn
acquisitions at rates similar to the past, whichld@dversely impact our growth rate and stockeprithis strategy includes taking advantag
a consolidation trend in the industry and effectieguisitions of businesses with complementaryesirdble product lines, strategic distribu
locations, attractive customer bases or manufactetationships. Promising acquisitions are diffido identify and complete for a numbel
reasons, including high valuations, competition agh@rospective buyers, the need for regulatorylafing antitrust) approvals and
availability of affordable funding in the capitalamkets. In addition, competition for acquisitiomsdur business areas is significant and
result in higher purchase prices. Changes in ad¢oayar regulatory requirements or instability etcredit markets could also adversely im
our ability to consummate acquisitions. In additiaequisitions involve a number of special risksluding possible adverse effects on
operating results, diversion of managemerdttention, failure to retain key personnel of #Hwguired business, difficulties in integrai
operations, technologies, services and personnatauiired companies, potential loss of customeecqgtiired companies, preserving busi
relationships of the acquired companies, risksa@atad with unanticipated events or liabilitiesgdaxpenses associated with obsolete inve
of an acquired business, some or all of which chialde a material adverse effect on our businasandial condition and results of operatit
Our ability to grow at or above our historic ratiepends in part upon our ability to identify andeassfully acquire and integrate compa
and businesses at appropriate prices and realiicgpated cost savings.

Risks Related to Acquisition Financi

We may need to finance acquisitions by using shaff€mmon Stock for a portion or all of the corsation to be paid. In the event that
Common Stock does not maintain a sufficient maviaéde, or potential acquisition candidates aremitse unwilling to accept Common St
as part of the consideration for the sale of thesinesses, we may be required to use more ofamlr esources, if available, to maintain
acquisition program. These cash resources maydadhorrowings under our credit agreement or equitgiebt financings. Our current cre
agreement with our bank lenders contains certagtricons that could adversely affect our ability implement and finance poten
acquisitions. Such restrictions include provisiersch limit our ability to merge or consolidate tjtor acquire all or a substantial part of
properties or capital stock of, other entities withthe prior written consent of the lenders. Theaa be no assurance that we will be ab
obtain the lendes consent to any of our proposed acquisitions.elfde not have sufficient cash resources, our grawthd be limited unle:
we are able to obtain additional capital througbtae equity financings
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Ability to Comply with Financial Covenants of CreBacility

Our credit facility requires the Company to compljth certain specified covenants, restrictionsaficial ratios and other financial ¢
operating tests. The Compasyability to comply with any of the foregoing restions will depend on its future performance, whigill be
subject to prevailing economic conditions and offaetors, including factors beyond the Compangontrol. A failure to comply with any
these obligations could result in an event of défander the credit facility, which could permitcateration of the Company’indebtedne:
under the credit facility. The Company from timetitne has been unable to comply with some of tharftial covenants contained in the ci
facility (relating to, among other things, the ntaimance of prescribed financial ratios) and haserwhecessary, obtained waivers
amendments to the covenants from its lenders. Aghadhe Company expects to be able to comply wkighcovenants, including the finan
covenants, of the credit facility, there can beassurance that in the future the Company will e &bdo so or, if is not able to do so, tha
lenders will be willing to waive such complianceforther amend such covenants.

Ability to Refinance

We may not be able to refinance existing debt ertdrms of any refinancing may not be as favoralslehe terms of our existing debi
principal payments due at maturity cannot be reftea, extended or repaid with proceeds from otbarces, such as new equity capital,
cash flow may not be sufficient to repay all matgrdebt in years when significant payments come due

Goodwill and intangible assets recorded as a resfitiur acquisitions could become impaired.

Gooduwill represents the difference between the lmage price of acquired companies and the relateddmes of net assets acquired. We
goodwill for impairment annually and whenever egenit changes in circumstances indicate that immaitrmay have occurred. Goodwill ¢
intangibles represent a significant amount of otaltassets. As of December 31, 2013, our combjoedwill and intangible assets amout
to $257.8 million, net of accumulated amortizatidio. the extent we do not generate sufficient césivs to recover the net amount of .
investments in goodwill and other intangible asset®rded, the investment could be considered iragaind subject to writeff which woulc
directly impact earnings. We expect to record aoid#l goodwill and other intangible assets as alted future business acquisitions. Fu
amortization of such other intangible assets oraimmpents, if any, of goodwill or intangible asse&tsuld adversely affect our results
operations in any given period.

Our business has substantial competition that cadidersely affect our results.

Our business is highly competitive. We compete withariety of industrial supply distributors, soofewhich may have greater financial
other resources than us. Although many of our tiadil distribution competitors are small enterpsisselling to customers in a limi
geographic area, we also compete with larger digiors that provide integrated supply programs saglhose offered through outsourt
services similar to those that are offered by c06S$egment. Some of these large distributors magbheto supply their products in a m
timely and cosefficient manner than us. Our competitors includéalog suppliers, large warehouse stores and, lesser extent, certe
manufacturers. Competitive pressures could adyeastdct DXP’s sales and profitability.

Interruptions in the proper functioning of our imfoation systems could disrupt operations and cdansegeases in costs and/or decrease
revenues.

The proper functioning of DXP’s information systensscritical to the successful operation of ouribass. Although DX informatiol
systems are protected through physical and softwafeguards and remote processing capabilities, exis information systems are ¢
vulnerable to natural disasters, power losses;aetenunication failures and other problems. If catiinformation systems fail or are otherv
unavailable, DXPs ability to procure products to sell, process simgp customer orders, identify business opportegitmaintain proper levt
of inventories, collect accounts receivable and g@younts payable and expenses could be adveffatyed.

Risks Associated with Insuran

In the ordinary course of business we at times imagome the subject of various claims, lawsuits dmiaistrative proceedings seek
damages or other remedies concerning our commexg&htions, the products we distribute, employeesother matters, including poten
claims by individuals alleging exposure to hazasdmaterials as a result of the products we didtilon our operations. Some of these cli
may relate to the activities of businesses thahawe acquired, even though these activities mag bagurred prior to acquisition. The prodi
we distribute are subject to inherent risks thatl@¢aesult in personal injury, property damage,lya@n, death or loss of production. A
defects in the products we distribute could reisuftersonal injury, death, property damage, palutr loss of production.

We maintain insurance to cover potential lossed,ve@ are subject to various deductibles and cagsruour insurance. It is possible, howe
that judgments could be rendered against us irsdasghich we would be uninsured and beyond thewarsothat we currently have reserve
anticipate incurring for such matters. Even a plytiuninsured claim, if successful and of sigrdfit size, could have a material adverse ¢
on our business, results of operations and finaeoiadition. Furthermore, we may not be able toticare to obtain insurance on commerci
reasonable terms in the future, and we may in@sde from interruption of our business that exaeednsurance coverage. In cases wher
maintain insurance coverage, our insurers may Kaseus objections and exceptions to coverage hwhbauld make uncertain the timing
amount of any possible insurance recovery.

Risks Associated with Cyl-Security

Through our sales channels, and electronic commatiaits with customers generally, we collect andm@én confidential information that
customers provide to us in order to purchase prsducservices. We also acquire and retain infaonadbout suppliers and employees in



normal course of business. Computer hackers maynpttto penetrateour information systems or our vendors' informatsystems and,
successful, misappropriate confidential customappBer, employee or other business information. In addition, one of our erypks
contractors or other third party may attempt ¢@cumvent security measures in order to obtair soformation or inadvertently cause a bre
involving such information. Loss of information ddwexpose us toclaims from customers, suppliers, financial insiitns, regulators, payme
card associations, employees and other personsfamyich could have an adverse effect on our financial dirdand results of operations.
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ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
ITEM 2. Properties

We own our headquarters facility in Houston, Texasich has approximately 48,000 square feet otefBpace. At December 31, 2013,
had approximately 172 facilities which contained kérvices centers, 7 distribution centers andab€idation facilities.

At December 31, 2013, the Service Centers segmenéa or leased 171 service center facilities. @séhfacilities, 136 were located in
U.S. in 35 states and 34 were located in 9 Cangthiavinces and 1 in Sonora, Mexico. All of the disition centers were located in the U
specifically in California, Georgia, lllinois, Maashusetts, Montana, Nebraska, and Texas. At DeaeB1he2013, the Innovative Pump
Solutions segment operated out of 10 facilitiested in 5 states in the U.S. and two provincesdandda. At December 31, 2013, the Su
Chain Services segment operated supply chain liaistals in 62 of our customers’ facilities in 263J states.

At December 31, 2013, our owned facilities rangednf 6,500 square feet to 48,000 square feet in ¥eeleased facilities for terms gener
ranging from one to fifteen years. The leased it&sl ranged from approximately 1,000 square feet#0,000 square feet in size. The le
provide for periodic specified rental payments aedtain leases are renewable at our option. We\eelihat our facilities are suitable
adequate for the needs of our existing businessb®lieve that if the leases for any of our faahktiwere not renewed, other suitable facil
could be leased with no material adverse effeciarbusiness, financial condition or results ofragiens.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, the Company is a party to vasitegal proceedings arising in the ordinary cowkéusiness. While DXP is unable
predict the outcome of these lawsuits, it beliethed the ultimate resolution will not have, eithiedividually or in the aggregate a mate
adverse effect on DXP’s business, consolidatedféizh position, cash flows, or results of operagion

ITEM 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable

PART Il

ITEM 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity, Relat&thareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equigcurities
Our common stock trades on The NASDAQ Global Matketer the stock symbol "DXPE".

The following table sets forth on a per share btsashigh and low sales prices for our common stckeported by NASDAQ for the peri
indicated.

High Low

2013

Fourth Quarte $116.88 $78.44
Third Quartel $ 78.98 $63.49
Second Quarte $ 75.00 $54.50
First Quarte! $76.91 $49.65
2012

Fourth Quarte $51.68 $42.11
Third Quartel $49.85 $38.25
Second Quarte $50.35 $ 36.76
First Quarte! $45.90 $31.78

On March 7, 2014, we had approximately registel Holders of record for outstanding shares ofawmmon stock. This number does
include shareholders for whom shares are heldaminee” or “street name”.

We anticipate that future earnings will be retainedinance the continuing development of our besi In addition, our bank credit faci
prohibits us from declaring or paying any cash alvids or other distributions on our capital staekgept for the monthly $0.50 per st
dividend on our Series B convertible preferred Istaghich amounts to $90,000 in the aggregate par.y&ccordingly, we do not anticips
paying cash dividends on our common stock in thesieeable future. The payment of any future divddesill be at the discretion of our Bo:
of Directors and will depend upon, among other dhinfuture earnings, the success of our busineBsitias, regulatory and capil
requirements, lenders, and general financial aiséhbas conditions.

Stock Performance

The following performance graph compares the peréorce of DXP Common Stock to the NASDAQ Industtiadex and the NASDA
Composite (US). The graph assumes that the valtleeafvestment in DXP Common Stock and in eackxndas $100 at December 31, 2



and that all dividends were reinvested.
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Total Return to Stockholder
(Assumes a 5100 investment on December 31, 2008)
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Investors are cautioned against drawing conclusiam the data contained in the graph as pastteeavt not necessarily indicative of fui
performance.

Equity Compensation Table

The following table provides information regardisigares covered by the Company’s equity compensplaos as of December 31, 2013:

Number of
securities
Number Weighted remaining available
of Shares average for future issuance
to be issued exercise price of Non-vested Weighted under equity
on exercise of outstanding restricted shares  average compensation
Plan category outstanding options options outstanding grant price plans
Equity compensation plans approved by
shareholder N/A N/A 211,510 $36.17 123,750
Equity compensation plans not approved
shareholder N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Total N/A N/A 211,510 $36.17 123,750

(1) Represents shares of common stock authorizédsoance under the 2005 Restricted Stock |

Unregistered Shares

DXP issued 19,685 unregistered shares of DXP Com8took as part of the consideration for the May2Q]12 acquisition of Industri
Paramedic Services. The unregistered shares vgereddo the stockholder of Industrial ParamediviSes.

DXP Issued 52,542 unregistered shares of DXP Com&took as part of the consideration for the Apfi] 2013 acquisition of NatPro. T
unregistered shares were issued to certain seflétatpro.

We relied on Section 4(2) of the Securities ExcleaAgt as a basis for exemption from registratiol.igsuances were as a result of pri
negotiation, and not pursuant to public solicitatitn addition, we believe the shares were issoe@dcredited investorsds defined by Ru
501 of the Securities Act.

Recent Sales of Common Stock

On May 29, 2013, the Company filed with the Segsiand Exchange Commission a For8 Begistration Statement, commonly referre
as a“shelf registratio”, whereby the Company registered shares of commatk.sio December 2013, pursuant to this registrastaemen



the Company issued 235,976 shares of common stackvaighted average price of $105.94 per sharepieeeds were approximately $Z
million.

Repurchases of Common Stock
There were no stock repurchases during the fowrdntgr of 2013.
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected historical consolidated financial dagaforth below for each of the years in the fpjear period ended December 31, 2013
been derived from our audited consolidated findrat@tements. This information should be read mjwaction with "Management's Discuss
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resultgferations" and the consolidated financial statésnand notes thereto included elsew

in this Report.

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009™)
(in thousands, except per share amol)

Consolidated Statement of Earnings D.
Sales $1,241,51 $1,097,11 $ 807,00! $ 656,20. $ 583,22
Gross Profit 372,34! 319,09: 231,83t 188,39! 151,41
Operating income (lost 100,92 90,52: 55,48t 37,09: (49,332
Income (loss) before income tax 94,71% 85,00¢ 51,99: 32,13: (54,482
Net income (loss 60,237 50,98¢ 31,43: 19,38 (42,412
Per share amoun
Basic earnings (loss) per common skt $ 4.1 $ 3.5 $ 2.1 $ 1.4 $ (3.24
Common shares outstandi 14,43¢ 14,37 14,30: 13,82 13,117
Diluted earnings (loss) per sh: $ 3.9 $ 3.3 $ 2.0 $ 1.3 $ (324
Common and common equivalent shares
outstanding 15,27¢ 15,21« 15,14: 14,82: 13,117

(1)The goodwill and other intangibles impairmenage and the inventory impairment charge in 20@her discussed in Item 7 of this
Report, reduced operating income by $66.8 mildad increased basic and diluted loss per shar@ 82

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

As of December 31

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(in thousands
Total asset $635,60 $569,73. $ 405,33 $ 320,62 $ 270,92
Long-term debt obligation 168,37. 216,33¢ 114,20 103,62: 102,91¢
Shareholde’ equity 296,25( 208,49: 156,67! 124,12( 90,21
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ITEM 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should bedraconjunction with the Consolidated Financiaht®ments and related notes contai
within Item 8 of this Report. Management’s Discoissand Analysis uses forwatoeking statements as described previously in oiscidsure
Regarding Forwar-Looking Statements.

General Overview

Our products and services are marketed in the Ur8tates, Canada, and Mexico to over 50,000 custothat are engaged in a variet
industries, many of which may be countercyclicatéah other. Demand for our products generallyligest to changes in the United States
Canada, and global and miceeenomic trends affecting our customers and thesimigés in which they compete in particular. Certaf thes
industries, such as the oil and gas industry, aigest to volatility driven by a variety of factomhile others, such as the petrochemical ind
and the construction industry, are cyclical andemally affected by changes in the United Stated global economy. As a result, we r
experience changes in demand within particular Btarlsegments and product categories as changasio@tir customers' respective mark

During 2009, the general economy and the oil argleggloration and production business declinedifsigntly. During 2009, our headcol
decreased by approximately 10% as a result of rexctiaken to reduce operating costs. Sales for 2@@8ned by 21% from 2008. Sales
businesses acquired during 2008 accounted for $8#lidn of 2009 sales. Excluding these sales yuaed businesses, sales declined by
from 2008. The 2009 sales decline is primarily doiea broadsased decline in the sales of pumps, bearingstyspfeducts and industri
supplies in connection with a brohdsed decline in the U.S. economy. This economitirdeled to the impairment of our goodwill and e
intangibles. During the fourth quarter of 2009 @@mpany recognized an impairment charge of $53llomfor goodwill and other intangibl
and an impairment charge of $13.8 million to redteevaluation of inventory acquired in the 200@uasition of Precision Industries, Inc. 1
impairment charges did not result in any cash ediperes, did not adversely affect compliance wiblrenants under our credit facility, and
not affect our cash position or cash flows fromragiag activities.

During 2010, the general economy and the oil arelegloration and production business improved. @uployee headcount increasec
approximately 7% as a result of two acquisitionscl&ding the employees at the two acquired busesebhsadcount declined by approxime
1%, primarily as a result of consolidating backa&ffunctions. Sales by Quadna, acquired AprilQ,and D&F, acquired December 1, 2(
accounted for $43.6 million of 2010 sales. Exclgd@uadna and D&F sales, sales for 2010 increa$¥d.5.

During 2011, the general economy and the oil argl ey@loration and production business continuetnforove. Our employee headco
increased by 18% primarily as a result of two asijons and hiring additional personnel to suppocteased sales. Sales for the year e
December 31, 2011 increased $150.8 million, or 23.@ approximately $807.0 million from $656.2 nafl in 2010. Sales by KC, acquil
October 10, 2011, accounted for $11.9 million ol PGales. Sales by businesses acquired in 2018,same store sales basis, accounte
$35.6 million of 2011 sales. Excluding 2011 salgdbbsinesses acquired in 2010 and 2011, on a samesales basis, sales increased 1
from 2010. The majority of the 2011 sales increzem®e from a broatlased increase in sales of pumps, bearings, safedyicts and industri
supplies to customers engaged in oilfield sernadeand gas exploration and production, mining, ofaoturing and petrochemical processing.

During 2012, the general economy and the oil ansl @gloration and production business remainedtipesiOur employee headcol
increased by 35% primarily as a result of multiptguisitions and hiring additional personnel topgrp increased sales. Sales for the
ended December 31, 2012 increased $290.1 millioB5®%, to $1,097.1 million from $807.0 million 2011. Sales by businesses acquirt
2012 accounted for $86.3 million of 2012 saleseSdly businesses acquired in 2011 accounted fof. $Hillion of 2012 sales, on a s&
store sales basis. Excluding 2012 sales of $194li@mby businesses acquired in 2011 and 2012a same store sales basis, sales incr
11.9% from 2011. The majority of this 11.9% saleséase came from a brohdsed increase in sales of pumps, bearings, gafetcts an
industrial supplies to customers engaged in odf@trvice, oil and gas exploration and productioming, manufacturing and petrochem
processing.

During 2013, the growth rate of the general econmioyved from 2012 and sales of metal working andribg and power transmiss
products to manufacturers of oil field equipmentlobed. Our employee headcount increased by 13.8%aply as a result of multip
acquisitions. Sales for the year ended Decembe2@!13 increased $144.4 million, or 13.2%, to $ilh from $1.1 billion in 2012. Sales
businesses acquired in 2013 accounted for $63liomdf 2013 sales. Sales by businesses acquir2@lf accounted for $75.9 million of 2(
sales, on a same store sales basis. Excluding <2088 of $139.6 million by businesses acquiredit?2and 2013, on a same store sales |
sales increased $4.8 million, or 0.4%, from 2012.

Our sales growth strategy in recent years has étos internal growth and acquisitions. Key elemerftour sales strategy include levera
existing customer relationships by crasdling new products, expanding product offeringsnew and existing customers, and incree
business-tdausiness solutions using system agreements andyscipgin solutions for our integrated supply custosn We will continue 1
review opportunities to grow through the acquisitif distributors and other businesses that wowufzthed our geographic reach and/or
additional products and services. Our results dafpend on our success in executing our internaltretrategy and, to the extent we comg
any acquisitions, our ability to integrate suchuasijons effectively.

Our strategies to increase productivity includesabidated purchasing programs, centralizing prodisttibution centers, and customer ser
and inside sales functions, converting selectedtions from full warehouse and customer serviceratfpns to service centers, and u
information technology to increase employee pradiigt
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Results of Operations
Years Ended December 31

2013 % 2012 % 2011 %
(in millions, except percentages and per share anx)

Sales $1,241.! 100.( $1,097.. 100.( $ 807.( 100.(
Cost of sales 869.2 70.C 778.( 70.¢ 575.% 71.5
Gross profit 3728 30.C 319.] 29.1 231.¢ 28.7
Selling, general & administrative expense 271. 21.¢ 228.¢ 20.¢ 176.% 21.¢
Operating incom: 100.¢ 8.1 90.t 8.2 55.5 6.8
Interest expens 6.2 0.t 5.€ 0.t 3.t 0.4
Other expense (income) (0.1) - (0.0 - - -
Income before income tax 94.7 7.€ 85.C 7.8 52.C 6.4
Provision for income taxes 34.t 2.E 34.C 3.1 20.€ 2.5
Net income $ 60.2 4.¢ $51.( 4.7 $31.¢ 3.¢
Per shart

Basic earnings per she $4.17 $ 3.5¢ $2.1¢

Diluted earnings per sha $ 3.9¢ $ 3.3 $ 2.0¢

DXP is organized into three business segmentsic&eBenters, Supply Chain Services (SCS) and IrthavBumping Solutions (IPS). The
Service Centers are engaged in providing maintenaepair and operating (MRO) products, equipmadtiategrated services, including
technical expertise and logistics capabilitiesnttustrial customers with the ability to providersaday delivery. The Service Centers provide
wide range of MRO products and services in thetir@gaquipment, bearing, power transmission, htbgiel power, metal working, industrial
supply and safety product and service categories.SCS segment manages all or part of our custeraepply chain, including inventory. T
IPS segment fabricates and assembles integratep pystem packages custom made to customer spéoifisa

Year Ended December 31, 2013 compared to Year End&kcember 31, 2012

SALES. Sales for the year ended December 31, 20d@ased $144.4 million, or 13.2%, to approximatly241.5 million from $1,097
million in 2012. Sales by businesses acquired tB328ccounted for $63.7 million of 2013 sales. Shiebusinesses acquired in 2012 accot
for $75.9 million of the 2013 increase, on a sameessales basis. Excluding 2013 sales of $139l6mby businesses acquired in 2012
2013, on a same store sales basis, sales increpskti8 million, or 0.4%, from 2012. An increasesales in our IPS segment of $15.7,
same store sales basis, were mitigated by decrgmeas Service Centers segment and Supply Chawic®s segment of $2.2 million and $
million, on a same store sales basis, respectively.

GROSS PROFIT. Gross profit as a percentage of satesased to 30.0% for 2013 compared to 29.1%Herprior corresponding peri
primarily as a result of increased gross profittpatages experienced by our Supply Chain ServitgsSarvice Center segments. The incr
in gross profit percentage in the Service Centgmsmt was primarily related to changes in produgt Bupply Chain Services segmengjros
profit percentage increased primarily as a redudt change in customer mix.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE. Sellig, general and administrative expense for 2013as®d by approximate
$42.9 million, or 18.8%, when compared to 2012liSg| general and administrative expense by busegacquired in 2013 was $10.0 mill
Selling, general and administrative expense fousitipns that occurred in 2012 accounted for $28illion of the 2013 increase, on a st
store sales basis. Excluding 2013 expenses of $8#ibn by businesses acquired in 2012 and 201h3a same store sales basis, the inc
primarily related to increased salaries, commissitiealth claims and insurance premiums. As a ptage of sales, the 2013 expense incre
to 21.9% from 20.8%, primarily as a result of basises acquired in 2012 and 2013 having highengelieneral and administrative expel
as a percentage of sales compared to the remaih&e¢P.

OPERATING INCOME. Operating income for 2013 incre@$10.4 million, or 11.5%, from $90.5 million t4G0.9 million, compared to t
prior corresponding period. The increase is pritpaglated to the combination of the 13.2% increiasgales, and the increase in gross pro
a percentage of sales.

INTEREST EXPENSE. Interest expense for 2013 inaédxy $0.7 million, or 13%, from 2012. The increas@terest expense was prima
the result of increased borrowings used to acduisnesses.

INCOME TAXES. Our provision for income taxes diféer from the U. S. statutory rate of 35% primarilyedo state income taxes and nor
deductible expenses. Our effective tax rate for326f136.4% decreased from 40% from the prior cgoesing period, primarily as a result
lower accruals for state income taxes and the effethe $2.8 million of income from reversing thecrual for an earput related to tr
acquisition of Natpro. The income is accountedaf®a permanent difference for tax purposes.

SERVICE CENTERS SEGMENT. Sales for the Service @wntincreased $105.8 million, or 13.6% in 2013 carag to the pric
corresponding period. Sales by businesses acqinr213 accounted for $31.6 million of 2013 sal8ales by businesses acquired in :
accounted for $75.9 million of the 2013 increaseacsame store sales basis. Excluding 2013 sal$$0at.5 million by businesses acqu
2012 and 2013, on a same stores sales basis, S€eiterssales decreased $2.2 million, or 0.3%, on a saaresssales basis, from the p
corresponding period. This sales decrease is plimie result of decreased sales of metal workamgl bearing and power transmis:
products to manufacturers of oil field equipmenithdugh sales remained consistent with the prioresponding period, gross profit increa



$8.7 million, after excluding 2012 and 2013 acdigsis, on a same store sales basis. This increasemmarily due to changes in product
Operating income for the Service Centers segmenéased $18.2 million, or 20.5%. Excluding 2012 2Ad3 acquisitions, operating inca

increased $8.9 million, or 10.1%, on a same steadss basis, from the prior corresponding peridds Thcrease was primarily attributable
the increased gross profit mentioned above.
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SUPPLY CHAIN SERVICES SEGMENT. Sales for Supply @®h8ervices decreased by $8.7 million, or 5.69%2043 compared to the pr
corresponding period. None of the 2012 or 2013 iattgpns contributed sales to this segment. Thaesse in sales is related to decline
sales to customers in the automotive and truck faatwring markets. Operating income for the SCSrsay remained constant with the p
corresponding period despite the decrease in dakego slightly increased gross margin. The in@adsgross margin is primarily related t
change in customer mix.

INNOVATIVE PUMPING SOLUTIONS SEGMENT. Sales for Iomative Pumping Solutions increased by $47.4 mmillior 29.3%, in 2013
compared to the prior corresponding period. Sajes business acquired in 2013 accounted for $38libmof 2013 sales. None of the 2012
acquisitions contributed sales to this segmentluging 2013 sales of $32.1 million by businesssgiaed in 2013 on a same stores sales
basis, IPS’ sales increased $15.7 million, or 9.@P6a same stores sales basis, from the priorsmneling period. The sales increase resultec
from increased capital spending by our oil andagasmining customers. Gross profit as a percerdfigales declined to 28.8% for 2013 from
31.3% for 2012. Excluding the business acquire2iti3, gross profit for 2013 was 31.5%, which isagge than the 31.3% for 2012. Operating
income for the IPS segment increased $1.7 milliwrs.2%. Excluding the 2013 acquisition, operatimgpme increased $1.2 million, or 3.8%,
primarily as a result of the increase in sales.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 compared to Year End&kcember 31, 2011

SALES. Sales for the year ended December 31, 2@d2ased $290.1 million, or 35.9%, to approxima$dly097.1 million from $807.0 millic
in 2011. Sales by businesses acquired in 2012 ateddor $86.3 million of 2012 sales. Sales by hesses acquired in 2011 accountet
$107.7 million of the 2012 increase, on a sameestates basis. Excluding 2012 sales of $194.0aniliy businesses acquired in 2011
2012, on a same store sales basis, sales increps96.1 million, or 11.9% from 2011. The majordfthis 11.9% sales increase came frc
broadbased increase in sales of pumps, bearings, safetiucts and industrial supplies to customers esjag oilfield service, oil and g
exploration and production, mining, manufacturimgl @etrochemical processing.

GROSS PROFIT. Gross profit as a percentage of satesased to 29.1% for 2012 compared to 28.7%tHerprior corresponding peri
primarily as a result of increased gross profitceatages experienced by our Innovative Pumping ti®okli and Supply Chain Servic
segments. Supply Chain Servicgsdss profit percentage increased primarily assalref a change in customer mix. The increaseross
profit percentage in the IPS segment was primagilgted to stronger demand for IPS products.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE. Sellig, general and administrative expense for 2012as®d by approximate
$52.3 million, or 29.7%, when compared to 2011liSgl general and administrative expense by busggacquired in 2012 was $24.3 mill
Selling, general and administrative expense fousttipns that occurred in 2011 accounted for $Iilon of the 2012 increase, on a s
store sales basisExcluding 2012 expenses of $43.6 million by bustessacquired in 2011 and 2012, on a same store lsadés, the incree
primarily related to increased salaries, commissidrealth claims and insurance premiums. As a ptage of sales, the 2012 expe
decreased to 20.8% from 21.9%, primarily as a tefidconomies of scale.

OPERATING INCOME. Operating income for 2012 increé$35.0 million from $55.5 million to $90.5 millig or 63.1%, compared to !
prior corresponding period. The increase is primaglated to the combination of the 35.9% incremssales, the increase in gross profit
percentage of sales, and selling, general and &stnaitive expense increasing only 29.7% comparebdd5.9% increase in sales.

INTEREST EXPENSE. Interest expense for 2012 in@édsy $2.1 million, or 58%, from 2011. Approximat&l0.7 million of this increa:
resulted from fully amortizing the debt issuancastsoof the old credit facility which was replaced duly 11, 2012. The remainder of
increase in interest expense was primarily thelre§increased borrowings used to acquire busegess

INCOME TAXES. Our provision for income taxes diféer from the U. S. statutory rate of 35% primarilyedo state income taxes and nor
deductible expenses. Our effective tax rate for226f140% increased from 39.5% from the prior cquoesling period, primarily as a resuli
non-deductible fees associated with acquisitions.

SERVICE CENTERS SEGMENT. Sales for the Service @wmsntncreased $218.8 million, or 39.1% in 2012 cared to the pric
corresponding period. Sales by businesses acquir2812 accounted for $86.3 million of 2012 sal®ales by businesses acquired in :
accounted for $95.6 million of the 2012 increaseacsame store sales basis. Excluding 2012 sal$$8&3i.9 million by businesses acqu
2011 and 2012, on a same stores sales basis, S&wsiterssales increased $36.9 million, or 6.6%, on a saonressales basis, from the p
corresponding period. This sales increase is pifyndue to continued improvement in the manufactgrand oil and gas portions of the U
economy. Operating income for the Service Centegment increased $24.4 million, or 37.9%. ExcludR@ll and 2012 acquisitiol
operating income increased $8.3 million, or 12.8%,a same stores sales basis, from the prior gumeéng period. This increase v
primarily attributable to the increased sales nwerdd above.

SUPPLY CHAIN SERVICES SEGMENT. Sales for Supply @h8ervices increased by $11.8 million, or 8.2%2@12 compared to the pr
corresponding period. None of the 2012 acquisitimorgributed sales to this segment. Sales by bss@seacquired in 2011 accounted for $
million of 2012 sales, on a same store sales b@kis.segment experienced a $0.4 million decreasales on a same store sales basis
decrease is primarily due to reduced sales to metin the trucking and military related industri®perating income for the SCS segr
increased by $4.0 million, or 47.8%, compared t® phior corresponding period. Excluding 2011 and2@cquisitions, operating inco
increased $3.1 million, or 36.8%, on a same steaéess basis from the prior corresponding periods ifttrease was due to an increase in ¢
profit percentage and a decrease in sales, gesrataddministrative costs related to a reducticediministrative headcount.

INNOVATIVE PUMPING SOLUTIONS SEGMENT. Sales for lomative Pumping Solutions increased by $59.5 mmllior 58.2%, in 201
compared to the prior corresponding period. Thess@hcrease resulted from increased capital spgnly our oil and gas and min
customers. Operating income for the IPS segmentased $15.2 million, or 89.7%, primarily as a hesdé the 58.2% increase in sg



combined with an increased gross profit percentage.
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Pro Forma Results

The proforma unaudited results of operations for the Campan a consolidated basis for the twelve montldedrDecember 31, 2013 ¢
2012, assuming the acquisition of businesses cdeatpbla 2013 and 2012 (previously discussed in lfeusinesg were consummated as
January 1, 2012 are as follows (thousands, except per share amognts

Years EndedDecember 31

2013 2012
Net sales $1,284,46¢ $1,279,87(
Net income $ 61,92¢ $ 55,30¢
Per share dat
Basic earning $ 4.2¢ $ 3.83
Diluted earning: $ 4.0t $ 3.62

The pro forma unaudited results of operations tier Company on a consolidated basis for the twelwaths ended December 31, 2012
2011, assuming the acquisition of businesses cdatplim 2012 and 2011 were consummated as of JariyaPPll are as follows if
thousands, except per share amoynts

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011
Net sales $1,177,09] $1,062,54(
Net income $ 54,03 $ 41,35¢
Per share daf
Basic earning $ 3.7t $ 288
Diluted earning: $ 35E $ 272

Liquidity and Capital Resources
General Overview

As a distributor of MRO products and services, aguire significant amounts of working capital temduinventories and accounts receive
Additional cash is required for capital items suh information technology, warehouse equipment aapltal expenditures for our saf
products and services category. We also requite toagay our lease obligations and to service ebt.d

We generated approximately $82.2 million of casbperating activities in 2013 as compared to gaimgr&51.2 million in 2012. This chan
between the two years was primarily attributablthtochanges in working capital as well as an emean net income.

During 2013 we paid $61.2 million in cash, net 6f4million of cash acquired, for four businesseguéred during 2013 compared to pay
$144.9 million in cash related to the purchaseigiittbusinesses during 2012.

We purchased approximately $7.7 million of cap#ssets during 2013 compared to $14.1 million fdt2@Capital expenditures during 2!
were related primarily to transportation equipmetdmputer equipment, computer software, productguoipment, inventory handli
equipment, safety rental equipment and building laadehold improvements. Capital expenditures @dr2are expected to be within the ra
of the 2012 and 2013 expenditures.

At December 31, 2013, our total long-term debtjudimg the current portion, was $194.6 million cargd to total capitalization (total long-
term debt including current portion plus sharehdtequity) of $490.9 million. Approximately $186.2 fioh of this outstanding debt be
interest at various floating rates. Therefore,ragxample, a 200 basis point increase in inteetsswould increase our annual interest exg
by approximately $3.7 million.

Our normal trade terms for our customers requiggrant within 30 days of invoice date. In resporisedmpetition and customer demands
will offer extended terms to selected customerdwgibod credit history. Customers that are finahcisirong tend to request extended te
more often than customers that are not financitigng. Many of our customers, including compatiged in the Fortune 500, do not pay
within stated terms for a variety of reasons, idelg a general business philosophy to pay vendotata as possible.

During 2013, the amount available to be borrowedeurour credit facility increased from $109.5 noifli at December 31, 2012, to $1t
million at December 31, 2013. The increase in abdity is primarily the result the decrease in d&lle believe that the liquidity of our balai
sheet and credit facility at December 31, 2013yiples us with the ability to meet our working capibeeds, scheduled principal payme
capital expenditures and Series B convertible prefestock dividend payments during 2014.

During December 2013, the Company sold 235,976eshaf common stock through a FornB SRegistration Statement. Net proceeds
approximately $24.4 million. These proceeds werglus pay down debt obligations.

Credit Facility
On July 11, 2012 DXP entered into a credit faciligith Wells Fargo Bank National Association, asuleg Lender, Swingline Lender a

Administrative Agent for the lenders. On Decembgyr 3012 the Company amended the agreement whichaised the Credit Facility by $
million (the “Facility”). At December 31, 2013, theacility consisted of a $109.4 million term loardaa $262.5 million line of credit.



The line of credit portion of the Facility providélde option of interest at LIBOR plus an applicafilargin ranging from 1.25% to 2.25%
prime plus an applicable margin from 0.25% to 1.28B&re the applicable margin is determined by tbenanys leverage ratio as defined
the Facility at the date of borrowing. Rates foe term loan component were 25 basis points highan the line of credit borrowing
Commitment fees of 0.20% to 0.40% per annum weyalga on the portion of the Facility capacity notuise at any given time on the line
credit. Commitment fees are included as intereiiénconsolidated statements of income.

Primarily because the leverage ratio was higher dfte acquisition of HSE that occurred on July 2012, interest rates in effect on July
2012 were approximately 70 basis points higher ttheay were immediately prior to the acquisition. ppgximately $0.7 million of de
issuance costs associated with the prior crediitiaeere expensed in the third quarter of 2012.
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On December 31, 2013, the LIBOR based rate onirtkeof credit portion of the Facility was LIBOR pl1.50%, the prime based rate of the
Facility was prime plus 0.50%, the LIBOR based mtdhe term loan portion of the Facility was LIB@Ris 1.75% and the commitment fee
was 0.25%. At December 31, 2013, $186.2 million asowed under the Facility at a weighted averatgrest rate of approximately 1.8%
under the LIBOR options. At December 31, 2013,Goenpany had $154.1 million available for borrowingder the Facility.

At December 31, 2013, the Facility’s principal fitéal covenants included:

Consolidated Leverage Ratio — The Facility requitteat the Companyg’ Consolidated Leverage Ratio, determined at tlieodreach fisci
quarter, not exceed 3.5 to 1.0 as of the last d@ach quarter from the closing date through M&th2015 and not to exceed 3.25 to 1.00
June 30, 2015 and thereafter. The ConsolidatedrageeRatio is defined as the outstanding indebtdd&vided by Consolidated EBITDA -
the period of four consecutive fiscal quarters rgdin or immediately prior to such date. Indebtedrie defined under the Facility for finan
covenant purposes as: (a) all obligations of DXiPbifmrowed money including but not limited to olalipns evidenced by bonds, debentt
notes or other similar instruments; (b) obligatidnspay deferred purchase price of property orisesy (c) capital lease obligations;
obligations under conditional sale or other titdéention agreements relating to property purcha@dssued and outstanding letters of cr
and (f) contingent obligations for funded indebtesin At December 31, 2013, the Company’s Leveragie Ras 1.48 to 1.00.

Consolidated Fixed Charge Coverage Rafibe-Facility required that the Consolidated Fixduhfge Coverage Ratio on the last day of
quarter be not less than 1.25 to 1.0 with “Constéid Fixed Charge Coverage Ratitgfined as the ratio of (a) Consolidated EBITDA tioe
period of 4 consecutive fiscal quarters endingwrhsdate minus capital expenditures during suclogdexcluding acquisitions) minus inco
tax expense paid minus the aggregate amount ofctest payments defined in the agreement to (b)rttexest expense paid in cash, schec
principal payments in respect of long-term debt @redcurrent portion of capital lease obligatioossuch 12month period, determined in e:
case on a consolidated basis for DXP and its sisivsd. At December 31, 2013, the Company's Codiatdd Fixed Charge Coverage R
was 2.84 to 1.00.

Asset Coverage Ratio —The Facility required thatAlsset Coverage Ratio at any time be not less Itato 1.0 with “Asset Coverage Ratio”
defined as the ratio of (a) the sum of 85% of reebants receivable plus 65% of net inventory tot(lg) aggregate outstanding amount o
revolving credit outstandings on such date. At Delger 31, 2013, the Company's Asset Coverage Ratso2n®9 to 1.00.

Consolidated EBITDA as defined under the Facildy financial covenant purposes means, without dapibin, for any period the consolida
net income of DXP plus, to the extent deductedalsudating consolidated net income, depreciatiomprization (except to the extent that s
non-cash charges are reserved for cash charges takben in the future), nozash compensation including stock option or retstricstoc
expense, interest expense and income tax expentexés based on income, certain ¢inge costs associated with our acquisitions, irgggr
costs, facility consolidation and closing costyesance costs and expenses andtone-compensation costs in connection with the esitipn
of HSE and any permitted acquisition, writewn of cash expenses incurred in connection vkigheixisting credit agreement and extraordi
losses less interest income and extraordinary g@ioasolidated EBITDA shall be adjusted to give fooma effect to disposals or busin
acquisitions assuming that such transaction(s)dsadrred on the first day of the period excludiigreome statement items attributable to
assets or equity interests that is subject to slighosition made during the period and includingirdome statement items attributable
property or equity interests of such acquisitioasmtted under the Facility.

The following table sets forth the computationiué t everage Ratio as of December 31, 20ibliousands, except for ratids

For the Twelve Months endecDecember 31, 201. LeverageRatio
Income before taxe $ 94,71
Interest expens 6,282
Depreciation and amortizatic 21,66(
Stock compensation exper 2,832
Pro forma acquisition EBITD: 6,612
Other adjustments (351
@ Defined EBITDA $ 131,75
As of December 31, 201

Total lon¢-term debt, including current maturiti $ 194,58
(B) Defined indebtedness $ 194,58
Leverage Ratio (B)/(A) 1.4¢

Borrowings (in thousands)

December 31, 201, December 31, 201. Increase (Decrease
Current portion of lon-term debt $ 26,21 $ 22,05 $ 4,15
Long-term debt, less current portion 168,37. 216,33¢ (47,967
Total long-term debt $ 194,58 $ 238,39 $ (43,811@
Amount available $ 154,124 $ 109,53(D $ 44,59

(1) Represents amount available to be borrowetieatrtdicated date under the Facility. The amouatlable to be borrowed increased fi
December 31, 2012, primarily as a result of theicéidn in lon¢-term debt



(2) The decrease in lortgrm debt is primarily attributable to funds obtinfrom cash flows from operating activities and tesuance 1
common stock during December 2013 used to pay dfebhobligations
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Subsequent event:

On January 2, 2014, the Company completed the sitiqui of all of the equity securities and unitsB#7, LLC (“B27") by way of a Securitie
Purchase Agreement. The total transaction valueawpsoximately $293.6 million.

In connection with the closing of this acquisitiam January 2, 2014, the Company entered into aendied and Restated Credit Agreer
with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, asuileg Lender, and Administrative Agent for otherders (the “New Facility”)amending th
Companys existing credit facility initially entered intonoJuly 11, 2012 and amended on December 31, 22.New Facility expires «
January 2, 2019. The New Facility contains finahctswenants defining various financial measureslandls of these measures with which
Company must comply, which are similar to thoseun existing Facility. Covenant compliance is asedsas of each quarter end.

See additional discussion (including unaudited fmmona results) in Note 18Subsequent Events the Consolidated Financial Statem
included herein.

Performance Metrics (in days;

Three Months Ended December 31
2013 2012 (Decrease’

57.2

Days of sales outstandii 58. 1.
8. 8.C 0.

Inventory turns

[¢SN{e)
[¢SREN]

Accounts receivable days of sales outstanding Ww8r@ days at December 31, 2013 compared to 57.2 @alapecember 31, 2012. The sl
increase resulted from higher than average daysales outstanding at our 2012 acquisitions. Howethés increase was partially offset
improvements on days of sales outstanding exclug@i acquisitions on a same store sales basisntiory turns were 8.3 at December
2013 and 8.0 at December 31, 2012. The increasevémtory turns primarily resulted from the acqtigsis of Industrial Paramedic Servi
and HSE which have very little inventory.

Funding Commitment

We believe our cash generated from operations aaithhle under our credit facility will meet ourrmeal working capital needs during the r
twelve months. However, we may require additiorethtdoutside of our credit facility or equity finang to fund potential acquisitions. St
additional financings may include additional bardbtlor the public or private sale of debt or equ@igurities. In connection with any s
financing, we may issue securities that substaytitillute the interests of our shareholders. We matybe able to obtain additional financing
attractive terms, if at all. Refer to the Contratt®bligations table below.

Share Repurchases

On October 26, 2011, the Board of Directors autteatiDXP from time to time to purchase up to 200,88éres of DXP's common stock ¢
24 months. DXP publicly announced the authorizatieat day. Purchases could be made in open marlkeipoivately negotiated transactions.

During 2013, DXP purchased 5,400 shares of DXPfsmon stock at a price of $56.25 under this autlation.
During 2012, DXP purchased 76,300 shares of DXBrsmon stock at an average price per share of $4/m@er this authorization.

During 2011, DXP repurchased 65,171 shares of D¥#tsmon stock in non-open market transactions aivarage price per share of $22.18.
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Contractual Obligations

The impact that our contractual obligations as afd@mber 31, 2013 are expected to have on our liguaehd cash flow in future periods is
follows (in thousands ):

Payments Due by Perioc®

More than 5
Less than 1 Yeal 1-3 Years 3-5 Years Years Total
Long-term debt, including current porti(®) $ 26,21: $ 67,871 $ 98,58! $ 1,91¢ $ 194,58
Operating lease obligatiol 24,73 34,88: 15,55: 2,931 78,09¢
Estimated interest paymerits 3,25¢ 4,83¢ 1,021 131 9,241
Total $ 54,201 $107,59: $ 115,15 $ 4,97t $ 281,92

(1) Amounts represent the expected cash paymemtsrdbng-term debt and do not include any faiueahdjustment.

(2) Assumes interest rates in effect at DecembgR@13. Assumes debt is paid on maturity date andaplaced. Does not include interest on
the revolving line of credit as borrowings undeg facility fluctuate. The amounts of interest imedrfor borrowings under the revolving lines
of credit were approximately $1.9 million, $2.3 loih and $3.0 million for the years ended, 201312@and 2011, respectively. Management
anticipates an increased level of interest paymemthie New Facility in 2014 as a result of inceghborrowings to fund the acquisition of B
further discussed under “Subsequent Events” elsenihehis Report.

(3) This table represents future obligations of existing debt as of December 31, 2013 and doemalotde obligations under the New Faci
previously discussed und“ Subsequent ever’ within this section

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As part of our ongoing business, we do not pamrigpin transactions that generate relationshiph witconsolidated entities or finant
partnerships, such as entities often referred ®trastured finance or special purpose entitie®E'S"), which would have been establishet
the purpose of facilitating offalance sheet arrangements or other contractuattpw or limited purposes. As of December 31, 2018 wert
not involved in any unconsolidated SPE transactionsdid we have any other off-balance sheet gearents.

Indemnification

In the ordinary course of business, DXP enters auotractual arrangements under which DXP may agréedemnify customers from a
losses incurred relating to the services we perf@uoch indemnification obligations may not be sabje maximum loss clauses. Historice
payments made related to these indemnities haveiberaterial.

DISCUSSION OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND BUSINESS POLICIES

Critical accounting and business policies are thibaeare both most important to the portrayal abepanys financial position and results
operations, and require managememstibjective or complex judgments. These policesgehbeen discussed with the Audit Committee o
Board of Directors of DXP.

For more discussion regarding our significant aotiog and business policies, refer to Not&@nificant Accounting and Business Policies,
the Consolidated Financial Statements includedimere

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-licome Taxes (Topic 74Q)which requires entities to present unrecognizedbenefits as
liability and not combine it with deferred tax asséo the extent a net operating loss carry-foryargdimilar tax loss, or a tax credit carry
forward is not available at the reporting date. A&)13411 will become effective for fiscal years beginnaiter December 15, 2013. DXP \
adopt this guidance in the first quarter of 2014nslgement believes that the adoption of this gaiglawill not have a material effect on
consolidated financial position, results of operasi or cash flows.

Inflation

We do not believe the effects of inflation have angterial adverse effect on our results of openatior financial condition. We attempt
minimize inflationary trends by passing manufaatyméce increases on to the customer wheneveripadde.

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MarkRisk
Our market risk results primarily from volatility interest rates. Our exposure to interest rakerekates primarily to our debt portfolio. Us
floating interest rate debt outstanding at Decen8ier2013, a 100 basis point increase in inter@stsrwould increase our annual inte

expense by approximately $1.9 million. Also seestRractors,Included in Item 1A of this report for additiondk factors associated with «
business.
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The table below provides information about the Canys market sensitive financial instruments andstitutes a forward-looking statement.

Principal Amount By Expected Maturity
(in thousands, except percentag

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 There-after Total Fair Value

Fixed Rate Long- term $2,15( $1,73¢ $82¢ $85: $87¢ 1,91¢ $8,36: $8,36:
Debt

Average InteresRate 3.5% 3.5% 2.9% 2.9% 2.9% 2.9% - -
Floating Rate Long-terr $24,06: $30,93¢ $34,37! $96,84¢ - - $186,22 $186,22:
Debt

Average InteresRate (1 1.92% 1.92% 1.92% 1.72% - - - -
Total Maturities $26,21. $32,67. $35,20: $97,70: $87¢ $1,91¢ $194,58! $194,58!

(1) Assumes weighted average floating interessriateffect at December 31, 20:

ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
DXP Enterprises, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Houston, Texas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of DXP Enterprises, Inc. and Subsidiasesf December 31, 2013 and 2(
and the related consolidated statements of incardeeamprehensive income, shareholdergiity and cash flows for each of the three yen
the period ended December 31, 2013. Our auditsiatduded the financial statement schedule of [E{tferprises, Inc. listed in Item 15|
These consolidated financial statements and fimansiatement schedule are the responsibility of @wmpanys management. C
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesgsotidated financial statements and schedule basedr audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversightuBiogUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finastiééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digidg in the financial statements. An @
also includes assessing the accounting princigded and significant estimates made by managenmemtelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteeneferred to above present fairly, in all materespects, the financial position of D
Enterprises, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of Decembge2@®13 and 2012, and the results of their operatamd their cash flows for each of the t
years in the period ended December 31, 2013, ifoocmity with U.S. generally accepted accountingipiples. Also, in our opinion, the rela
financial statement schedules, when consideredlation to the basic consolidated financial stateisi¢aken as a whole, present fairly ir
material respects the information set forth therein

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), DXP Enterpris
Incs and subsidiaries internal control over finahceporting as of December 31, 2013, based ortiteria established iinternal Control—

Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriee Treadway Commission in 1992, and our regatéd Marc
11, 2014, expressed an unqualified opinion on tleztveness of DXP Enterprises, Inc.’s internahtrol over financial reporting.

Hein & Associates LLP
Houston, Texas

March 11, 2014
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON INTERNAL CONTROLS

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
DXP Enterprises, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Houston, Texas

We have audited DXP Enterprises, Iscinternal control over financial reporting as oéd@mber 31, 2013, based on criteria establish
Internal Control—ntegrated Framework issued by the Committee ofnSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissioi982. DXF
Enterprises, Incs management is responsible for maintaining effecititernal control over financial reporting and fts assessment of 1
effectiveness of internal control over financigbeeting included in the accompanying ManagenseRt&port on Internal Control over Finan
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express amagi on the Company’s internal control over finahceporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statglof the Public Company Accounting Oversightid&@nited States). Those standi
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordgrar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, and testing aath&ing the design and operating effectivenesgtefnal control based on the asse
risk. Our audit also included performing such otheocedures as we considered necessary in thentitances. We believe that our a
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeliregthe reliability of financie
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeeadcepted accounting principles.
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgddose policies and procedures that (1) pertatheéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseotdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalsurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtwver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgect to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, DXP Enterprises, Inc. maintainadall material respects, effective internal contreér financial reporting as of December
2013, based on criteria establishedrternal Control—Integrated Framewoliksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatufnthe
Treadway Commission in 1992,

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolids
balance sheets of DXP Enterprises, Inc. as of Dbeell, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidatattments of income &

comprehensive income, shareholdezguity, and cash flows for each of the years inttiiee year period ended December 31, 2013 ar
report dated March 11, 2014 expressed an unqubifiénion.

Hein & Associates LLP
Houston, Texas

March 11, 2014
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Company has assessed the effectiveness ofataal control over financial reporting as of Deter 31, 2013 based on criteria establi:
by Internal Control — Integrated Frameworiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatwite Treadway CommissionGOSC
Framework”). The Compang’management is responsible for establishing ardtaising adequate internal controls over financegorting
The Company’s independent registered public acaogifirm that audited the Comparsytonsolidated financial statements as of Deceidb,
2013, have issued an attestation report on the @oypinternal control over financial reporting, ialm appears on page 35.

Internal control over financial reporting is a pees designed by, or under the supervision of, apaoyis principal executive and princi|
financial officers, and effected by the Companyloard of directors, management and other perkotmerovide reasonable assurs
regarding the reliability of financial reporting cathe preparation of financial statements for exdkpurposes in accordance with gene
accepted accounting principles. A companiyiternal control over financial reporting inclsdihose policies and procedures that (1) pert:
the maintenance of records that, in reasonablél dataurately and fairly reflect the transacti@rsl dispositions of the assets of the comg
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactimnsecorded as necessary to permit preparatidimanicial statements in accordance \
generally accepted accounting principles, and teaeipts and expenditures of the company are beiage only in accordance w
authorizations of management and directors of tmapany; and (3) provide reasonable assurance fiegapdevention or timely detection
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition & tompanys assets that could have a material effect onitla@dial statements. Because o
inherent limitations, internal control over finaakreporting may not prevent or detect misstatemefitso, projections of any evaluation
effectiveness to future periods are subject taiglethat controls may become inadequate becauskasfges in conditions, or that the degre
compliance with policies or procedures may detatmr

The Companys assessment of the effectiveness of its interoairal over financial reporting included testingdaevaluating the design &
operating effectiveness of its internal control$hmthe participation of its principal executive gmincipal financial officers. In management’
opinion, the Company has maintained effective mdecontrol over financial reporting as of DecemB&y 2013, based on criteria establishe
the COSO Framework.

/s/ David R. Little /s] Mac McConnell

David R. Little Mac McConnell
Chairman of the Board and Senior Vice PresidFinance and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financidfficer
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DXP ENTERPRISES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

December 31, 201

December 31, 201,

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash $ 5,46 $ 10,45
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowances dobtful account:
of $8,798 in 2013 and $7,204 in 2C 192,00: 174,83.
Inventories, ne 105,27: 101,42:
Prepaid expenses and other current a 2,69:¢ 3,811
Deferred income taxe 7,718 5,182
Total current assets 313,14¢ 295,70:
Property and equipment, r 58,25: 58,71
Goodwill 188,11( 145,78t
Other intangible assets, net of accumulated anatidiz of $44,410 in 2013 anc
$31,699 in 201! 69,72: 63,18¢
Other lon¢-term asset 6,04: 6,34(

Total assets $ 635,27 $ 569,73

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Current maturities of lor-term debi $ 26,21 $ 22,05
Trade accounts payat 78,85 74,35¢
Accrued wages and benef 20,47: 15,21¢

Federal income taxes payal 853 1,69¢
Customer advance 3,72( 2,99¢
Other current liabilitie: 18,60t 12,13:

Total current liabilities 148,71 128,45.
Long-term debt, less current maturiti 168,37. 216,33¢
Non-current deferred income tax 21,93¢ 16,44¢
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes
Shareholder’ equity:

Series A preferred stock, 1/¥0/ote per share; $1.00 par value;
liguidation preference of $100 per share ($11Retember 31, 2013); 1,000,0
shares authorized; 1,122 shares issued and ouitsg¢ 1 1
Series B convertible preferred stock, 1¥\bte per share; $1.00
par value; $100 stated value; liquidation prefeesof $100 per
share ($1,500 at December 31, 2013); 1,000,00@slathorized; 15,000 sha
issued and outstandi 15 15

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 staréwrized;

14,468,485 in 2013 and 14,118,348 in 2012 shaseret 144 141
Additional paic-in capital 109,89:. 78,55¢
Retained earning 193,73 133,59(
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) ince (2,368 1,05¢
Treasury stock, at cost (146,871 shares at Dece8ih&013 and

141,471 shares at December 31, 2( (5,171 (4,867

Total shareholder equity 296,25( 208,49:
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 63527 $ 569,73

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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Sales
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling, general and
administrative expens
Operating incom:

Other income, ne

Interest expense

Income before income tax
Provision for income taxes
Net income

Preferred stock dividend
Net income attributable 1
common shareholders

Net income

(Loss) gain on long-term investment,
net of income taxe

Cumulative translation adjustment,
net of income taxe

Comprehensive income

Basic earnings per share

Weighted average common
shares outstanding

Diluted earnings per share

Weighted average common shares
and common equivalent
shares outstandir

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.

DXP ENTERPRISES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
$ 1,241,51 $ 1,097,11 $ 807,00
869,16 778,01¢ 575,16¢
372,34! 319,00: 231,83t
271,42: 228,56¢ 176,35:
100,92: 90,52 55,48¢
(75) (47) (28)
6,282 5,56( 3,51¢
94,71: 85,00¢ 51,99t
34,48( 34,02¢ 20,55¢
60,237 50,98¢ 31,43;
9 a0 acC

$ 60,14 $ 50,89 $ 31,34
$ 60,23 $ 50,98 $ 31,43
(387) 37¢ 64
(3,040 617 -
$ 56,81l $ 51,98 $ 31,50
$ 4.1 $ 3.5 $ 2.1¢
14,43¢ 14,37¢ 14,30:
$ 3.0 $ 3.3 $ 2.0¢
15,27¢ 15,21« 15,14
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DXP ENTERPRISES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
(in thousands, except share amounts)

Accumulated

Series A Series B Other
Preferred Preferred Common Paid-In  Retained Treasury Comprehensive
Stock Stock Stock Capital  Earnings Stock Income (Loss) Total

BALANCES AT
DECEMBER 31, 2010 $1 $ 1 $ 14C $72,61¢ $51,34¢ $ - $ - $124,12!
Dividends paic - - - - (90) - - (90)
Compensation expense
for restricted stoc - - - 1,25¢ - - - 1,25¢
Net gain on interest rate sw
for comprehensive incon - - - - - - 64 64
Issuance of 35,714 shares in
connection with acquisitior - - - 1,14: - - - 1,14z
Vesting of restricted stock for
68,069 shares of common stc - - 1 18¢ - - - 19C
Acquisition of 65,171 shares of
treasury stoc - - - - - (1,445 - (1,445
Net income - - - - 31,431 - - 31,437
BALANCES AT
DECEMBER 31, 2011 $1 $ 1F $ 141 $75,20¢ $82,69' $ (1,445 $ 62 $156,67!
Dividends paic - - - - (90) - - (90)
Compensation expense
for restricted stoc - - - 1,95¢ - - - 1,95¢
Net gain on lon-term investment
for comprehensive incon - - - - - - 37¢ 37¢
Issuance of 19,685 shares in
connection with an acquisitic - - - 94¢€ - - - 94¢€
Vesting of restricted stock for
75,419 shares of common stc - - - 44¢ - - - 44¢
Acquisition of 76,300 shares of
treasury stoc - - - - - (3,422 - (3,422
Cumulative translation adjustme - - - - - - 617 617
Net income - - - - 50,98t - - 50,98t
BALANCES AT
DECEMBER 31, 2012 $ 1 $ 1t $ 141 $78,55¢ $133,59(  $(4,867 $ 1,05¢ $208,49:
Dividends paic - - - - (90) - - (90)
Issuance of common sto 2 24,35¢ 24,35¢
Compensation expense
for restricted stoc - - - 2,832 - - - 2,83
Net loss on lon-term investment
for comprehensive incon - - - - - - (387, (387,
Issuance of 52,542 shares in
connection with an acquisitic - - 1 3,517 - - - 3,51¢
Vesting of restricted stock for
67,021 shares of common stc - - - 632 - - - 632
Acquisition of 5,400 shares of
treasury stoc - - - - - (304, - (304,
Cumulative translation adjustme - - - - - - (3,040 (3,040
Net income - - - - 60,23 - - 60,23
BALANCES AT
DECEMBER 31, 2013 $1 $ 1F $ 14 $109,89. $193,73 $(5,171 $ (2,368 $296,25I

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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DXP ENTERPRISES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating

activities:
Depreciatiol
Amortization of intangible asse
Write-off of debt issuance cos
Gain on reversal of e~out
Compensation expense for restricted s
Tax benefit related to vesting of restricstolck
Deferred income taxi
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, het o
assets and liabilities acquired in business aitopns:
Trade accounts receival
Inventorie:
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipm

Purchase of lor-term investmen

Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired
Net cash used in investing activitie

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from del

Principal payments on revolving line of credit aster long-term
debt

Dividends paic

Purchase of treasury sto

Proceeds from issuance of common shares

Tax benefit related to vesting of restricted stock
Net (used in) cash provided by financing activitie

EFFECT OF FOREIGN CURRENCY ON CASH

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASt

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AT END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for Intere
Cash paid for Income Tax

Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012 2011
$ 60,23 $ 50,98! $ 31,43
9,83( 7,19¢ 3,51(
11,83( 10,88¢ 6,57:
- 654 -
(2,805 - ]
2,83: 1,95¢ 1,25¢
(958) (680) (198)
2,83¢ 1,23( 2,42€
(1,297 (1,978 (21,548
3,86( (3,470 (4,258
2,21¢ (2,211 (2,617
(6,380 (13,361 9,24¢
82,19¢ 51,20¢ 25,82¢
(7,745 (14,110 (4,096
(68) (105) (1,572
(61,195 (144,879 (18,434
(69,008 (159,094 (24,102
458,44 465,16: 224,30
(501,990 (345,231 (223,959
(90) (90) (90)
(304) (3,422 (1,445
24,35¢ - I
95¢ 68C 19¢
(18,622 117,10 (989
44¢ (264 -
(4,986 8,94¢ 731
10,45¢ 1,507 77C
$ 5,46 $ 10,45 $ 150
$ 5,48 $ 4,28 $ 3,49(
$ 35,69 $32,31; $ 14,19

Purchases of businesses in 2011 excludes $36idmill outstanding checks at December 31, 2011$4nt million of common stock issuec
connection with an acquisition. Acquisitions of messes in 2012 include $36.7 million which repnése outstanding checks at Decembe
2011, related to an acquisition that occurred iA120Purchases of businesses in 2012 exclude $0l®mmin common stock issued
connection with an acquisition. Purchases of bissieg in 2013 exclude $3.6 million in common stockdnnection with an acquisition.

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.




DXP ENTERPRISES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - THE COMPANY

DXP Enterprises, Inc. together with its subsidiar(eollectively “DXP,” “Company,” “us,” “we,” or “or”) was incorporated in Texas on J
26, 1996, to be the successor to SEPCO IndustriesDXP Enterprises, Inc. and its subsidiaries emgaged in the business of distribu
maintenance, repair and operating (MRO) produdisipenent and service to industrial customers. Tlen@any is organized into thi
segments: Service Centers, Supply Chain Servid@S)&nd Innovative Pumping Solutions (IPS). SeeeN@ for discussion of the busin
segments.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND BUSI NESS POLICIES

Basis of Presentatio

The Companys financial statements are prepared in accordaritte the accounting principles generally acceptedhi@ United States
America (“USGAAP”). The accompanying consolidated financial statemérgiide the accounts of the Company and its whollynec

subsidiaries.

All significant intercompany accounts and transatdi have been eliminated in consolidation. Cenpaior year amounts have been reclass
to conform to the current year presentation; ndfexted net income.

Foreign Currency

The financial statements of the CompanZanadian subsidiaries are measured using loo@nmies as their functional currencies. Assets
liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars at remt exchange rates, while income and expensedramelated at average exchange r
Translation gains and losses are reported in @imprehensive income (loss) in the statementsmga@ated comprehensive income.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees management to make estimates
assumptions in determining the reported amountsseéts and liabilities and disclosure of contingessets and liabilities at the date of
financial statements and the reported amounts wémges and expenses during the reporting periodhénopinion of management,
adjustments necessary in order to make the finastadéements not misleading have been includeduaatesults could differ from thao
estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company’s presentation of cash includes casivagnts. Cash equivalents are defined as gkart-investments with maturity dates of
days or less at time of purchase.

Receivables and Credit Ri

Trade receivables consist primarily of uncollateed customer obligations due under normal tradagewhich usually require payment wit
30 days of the invoice date. However, these payiteents are extended in select cases and many ceista@m not pay within stated trade tel

The Company has trade receivables from a divedsifiestomer base located primarily in the Rocky Maim Northeastern, Midweste
Southeastern and Southwestern regions of the UStates, and Canada. The Company believes no is@mtifconcentration of credit ri
exists. The Company evaluates the creditworthioé#s customers' financial positions and monitacsounts on a regular basis, but gene
does not require collateral. Provisions to thewvedince for doubtful accounts are made monthly arjdsadents are made periodically

circumstances warrant) based upon management' ggésiate of the collectability of all such accaunthe Company writesff uncollectible
trade accounts receivable when the accounts agentieed to be uncollectible. No customer represerte than 10% of consolidated sales.

Fair Value of Financial Instrumen

The Company is required to maximize the use of miadde inputs and minimize the use of unobservaipets when measuring fair val
USGAAP establishes a fair value hierarchy basetherievel of independent, objective evidence surding the inputs used to measure
value. A financial instrumerd’ categorization within the fair value hierarchypésed upon the lowest level of input that is digaint to the fai
value measurement. USGAAP prioritizes the inputts three levels that may be used to measure faieva

Level 1

Level 1 applies to assets or liabilities for whtblere are quoted prices in active markets for idahassets or liabilities.

Level 2

Level 2 applies to assets or liabilities for whitiere are inputs other than quoted prices thabhservable for the asset or liability sucl



quoted prices for similar assets or liabilitiesative markets; quoted prices for identical assetmbilities in markets with insufficient volur
or infrequent transactions (less active markets)modelderived valuations in which significant inputs arkservable or can be deri
principally from, or corroborated by, observablerke4 data.

Level 3

Level 3 applies to assets or liabilities for whitttere are unobservable inputs to the valuation ouetlogy that are significant to 1
measurement of the fair value of the assets ottitiab.
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See Note 4 for further information regarding then@any’s financial instruments.

Inventories

Inventories consist principally of finished goodsdaare priced at lower of cost or market, cost ¢paptermined using the first-in, firsti
(“FIFO") method. Reserves are provided against inventooegdtimated obsolescence based upon the agintgeahventories and marl
trends.

Property and Equipmel

Property and equipment are carried on the basisosf. Expenditures for major additions and betteitsiare capitalized. Depreciation
property and equipment is computed using the $ttdiige method over their estimated useful lives. Maiance and repairs of deprecii
assets are charged against earnings as incurrelitiohd and improvements are capitalized. When @rtigs are retired or otherwise dispc
of, the cost and accumulated depreciation are rechérom the accounts and gains or losses are ededitcharged to earnings.

The principal estimated useful lives used in deteimy depreciation are as follows:

Buildings 2C-39 years

Building improvement: 1C-20 years

Furniture, fixtures and equipme 3-20 years

Leasehold improvemen Shorter of estimated useful life or related leasen

Impairment of Goodwill and Other Intangible Ass

The Company tests goodwill and other indefinitedivntangible assets for impairment on an annusiskeand when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount ntybe recoverable. The Company assigns the ogriglue of these intangible assets t
"reporting units" and applies the test for goodwatlthe reporting unit level. A reporting unit isfthed as an operating segment or one level
below a segment (a "component") if the componeathsisiness and discrete information is prepardderiewed regularly by segment
management.

The Companys goodwill impairment assessment first requireduatang qualitative factors to determine if a refpay unit's carrying valt
would more likely than not exceed its fair valuethe Company concludes, based on the qualitaggessment, that a reporting unit's carr
value would more likely than not exceed its failuea the Company would perform a twtep quantitative test for that reporting unit. \tz
guantitative assessment is performed, the firgt &eto identify a potential impairment, and thes®l step measures the amount ol
impairment loss, if any. Goodwill is deemed to bipaired if the carrying amount of a reporting iijoodwill exceeds its estimated fair va
No impairment of goodwill was required in 2013, 2a&r 2011

Impairment of Lon-Lived Assets, Excluding Goodwill

The Company tests loniyed assets or asset groups for recoverabilitaomnnual basis and when events or changes imtstances indica
that their carrying amount may not be recovera@liecumstances which could trigger a review includet are not limited to: significa
decreases in the market price of the asset; sigmifiadverse changes in the business climate alrfizgfors; accumulation of costs significa
in excess of the amount originally expected fordbquisition or construction of the asset; curpariod cash flow or operating losses comb
with a history of losses or a forecast of contiguiosses associated with the use of the assetcuament expectation that the asset will n
likely than not be sold or disposed significantlgfdre the end of its estimated useful life. Recabiity is assessed based on the car
amount of the asset and its fair value which isegally determined based on the sum of the undigeducash flows expected to result from
use and the eventual disposal of the asset, asawalbecific appraisal in certain instances. Anaimpent loss is recognized when the carr
amount is not recoverable and exceeds fair value.

Stock-based Compensation

The Company uses restricted stock for shm®ed compensation programs. The Company measurgsensation cost with respect to eq
instruments granted as stobksed payments to employees based upon the edtifaatealue of the equity instruments at the daftthe gran
The cost as measured is recognized as expens¢heveeriod which an employee is required to progielvices in exchange for the award.

Revenue Recognitic

For binding agreements to fabricate tangible aswetsustomer specifications, the Company recognieeenues using the percentag:
completion method. Under this method, revenuesearegnized as costs are incurred and include esthpofits calculated on the basis of
relationship between costs incurred and total egtioh costs at completion. If at any time expectstcexceed the value of the contract
loss is recognized immediately. Revenues of apprasely $12.7 million, $15.9 million, and $9.8 mulfi were recognized on contract:
process for the years ended December 31, 2013, 20822011, respectively. The typical time spathebe contracts is approximately on
two years. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, $5.Jianikind $8.5 million, respectively, of unbilled toand estimated earnings are include
accounts receivable.

For other sales, the Company recognizes revenues ah agreement is in place, the price is fixelé tor product passes to the custome
services have been provided and collectabilitg@&sonably assured. Revenues are recorded neesftaaes.



The Company reserves for potential customer retoased upon the historical level of returns.

Shipping and Handling Costs

The Company classifies shipping and handling clahiiéed to customers as sales. Shipping and hagpdharges paid to others are class
as a component of cost of sales.
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Self-insured Insurance and Medical Claims

We generally retain up to $100,000 of risk for ealtzim for workers compensation, general liabiliytomobile and property loss. We aci
for the estimated loss on the sefured portion of these claims. The accrual isistéjd quarterly based upon reported claims infaonaf he
actual cost could deviate from the recorded esémat

We generally retain up to $250,000 of risk on eawddical claim for our employees and their depersleWte accrue for the estima
outstanding balance of unpaid medical claims faremployees and their dependents. The accrualjustad monthly based on recent cls
experience. The actual claims could deviate frooemeclaims experience and be materially diffefeorh the reserve.

The accrual for these claims at December 31, 288132812 was approximately $2.1 million and $1.8ionil respectively.
Purchase Accountin

DXP estimates the fair value of assets, includirgpprty, machinery and equipment and their relaseful lives and salvage values, intangi
and liabilities when allocating the purchase pof@n acquisition. The fair value estimates areetgyed using the best information availa
Third party valuation specialists assist in valuihg Company’s significant acquisitions.

Cost of Sales and Selling, General and Administeaixpense

Cost of sales includes product and product relatests, inbound freight charges, internal transéstc and depreciation. Selling, general
administrative expense includes purchasing andwiagecosts, inspection costs, warehousing coggretiation and amortization. DXPgros
margins may not be comparable to those of othétiemtsince some entities include all of the caestated to their distribution network in ¢
of sales and others like DXP exclude a portionhekt costs from gross margin, including the costsline item, such as selling, general
administrative expense.

Income Taxe

The Company utilizes the asset and liability metbbdccounting for income taxes. Deferred incomeassets and liabilities are computec
differences between the financial statement andniec tax bases of assets and liabilities. Such eefeincome tax asset and liabi
computations are based on enacted tax laws and amielicable to periods in which the differences axpected to reverse. Valua
allowances are established to reduce deferred iadamassets to the amounts expected to be realized

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes net income, foreigneacy translation adjustments, unrecognized g@asses) on postretirement and o
employmentrelated plans, changes in fair value of certainvdéves, and unrealized gains and losses on cerngestments in debt and eqt
securities. The Comparg/other comprehensive (loss) income is comprisezhahges in the market value of an investment guibted marke
prices in an active market for identical instrunsesid translation adjustments from translatingiforeubsidiaries to the reporting currency.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Ta»

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standardaf8“FASB”) issued authoritative guidance which requires thaasition taken or expect
to be taken in a tax return be recognized in tharftial statements when it is more likely than (het a likelihood of more than fifty perce
that the position would be sustained upon exanundaby tax authorities. A recognized tax positiothien measured at the largest amou
benefit that is greater than fifty percent likelfy keing realized upon ultimate settlement. The Canypand its subsidiaries file income
returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and vasi@ates. With few exceptions, the Company is ngdo subject to U. S. federal, state and |
tax examination by tax authorities for years ptm2007. The Company's policy is to recognize ggerelated to unrecognized tax benefi
interest expense and penalties as operating expehise Company believes that it has appropriatpatifor the income tax positions tal
and to be taken on its tax returns and that itsuats for tax liabilities are adequate for all opeyars based on an assessment of many f
including past experience and interpretations ida applied to the facts of each matter.

NOTE 3 - RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-licome Taxes (Topic 74Q)which requires entities to present unrecognizedbenefits as
liability and not combine it with deferred tax asséo the extent a net operating loss carry-forwardimilar tax loss, or a tax credit carry
forward is not available at the reporting date. A&)13411 will become effective for fiscal years beginnaiter December 15, 2013. DXP \
adopt this guidance in the first quarter of 2014nslgement believes that the adoption of this gaiglawill not have a material effect on
consolidated financial position, results of operasi or cash flows.

NOTE 4 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILI TIES

Authoritative guidance for financial assets andiliies measured on a recurring basis appliedlitnancial assets and financial liabilities t
are being measured and reported on a fair valus.ld&ar value, as defined in the authoritativedgmice, is the price that would be receive
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in @aderly transaction between market participantthatmeasurement date. The authorit:
guidance affects the fair value measurement ofnaastment with quoted market prices in an activeketafor identical instruments, whi
must be classified in one of the following categeri



Level 1 Input:

Level 1 inputs come from quoted prices (unadjusied)tive markets for identical assets or liaigitt
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Level 2 Input:

Level 2 inputs are other than quoted prices thatodaservable for an asset or liability. These ispotiude: quoted prices for similar assel
liabilities in active markets; quoted prices foeidical or similar assets or liabilities in markétsit are not active; inputs other than qu
prices that are observable for the asset or ltgbiéind inputs that are derived principally fromamrroborated by observable market dat
correlation or other means.

Level 3 Input:

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for thetamskability which require the Company’s own assations.

Financial assets and liabilities are classifiedeldasn the lowest level of input that is significamtthe fair value measurement. Our assess
of the significance of a particular input to thé fealue measurement requires judgment and maytatfe valuation of the fair value of as:
and liabilities and their placement within the fa@ue hierarchy levels.

The following table presents the changes in Levagdets for the period indicateth thousand9:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012
Fair value at beginning of peric $ 2,418 $ 1,67¢
Investment during peria 68 10t
Realized and unrealized gains (losses)
included in other comprehensive inco (644, 62¢
Fair value at end of period $ 1,83 $ 2,41

The Company has paid a total of $1.7 million foriamestment with quoted market prices in an activrket. At December 31, 2012,
market value of the investment was $2.4 million.Ddcember 31, 2013, the market value of the investrwas $1.8 million and is incluc
within other longterm assets in the balance sheet. The $0.6 millemnease in the market value during the year ebdegmber 31, 2013 w
included in other comprehensive income, net ofdaxe

NOTE 5 - INVENTORY

The carrying values of inventories are as followsthousand3:

December 31 December 31
2013 2012
Finished good $ 102,60 $ 97,67
Work in proces: 6,657 7,47(C
Inventory reserv: (3,994 3.727
lnventories $ 105,27 $ 101,42
NOTE 6 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
The carrying values of property and equipment arfobiows (in thousands:
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012

Land $ 2,13 $ 1,86
Buildings and leasehold improveme 9,56¢ 7,37¢
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 79,63 72,21¢
Less — Accumulated depreciation (33,082 (22,745
Total Property and Equipment $ 58,25 $ 58,71

Depreciation expense was $9.8 million, $7.2 milliand $3.5 million for the years ended Decembe2813, 2012, and 2011, respectively.
Capital expenditures by segment are included ire N6t
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NOTE 7 - GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table presents the changes in theyoay amount of goodwill and other intangible assitring the year ended December 31,
2013 (in thousandy:

Other
Goodwill Intangible Assets Total
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 145,78 $ 63,18 $ 208,97
Acquired during the perio 39,89¢ 22,03 61,93:
Adjustments to prior period estimat 2,42¢ (2,424 -
Translation adjustmel - (1,246 (1,246
Amortization - (11,830 (11,830
Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ 188,11 $69,72. $ 257,83,

During the year, the Company reduced customerflists our HSE acquisition by approximately $2.3lioil based on a valuation specialists’
report. This resulted in an increase in goodwitiefie were other insignificant changes to prior yesdimates.

The following table presents the changes in theyizay amount of goodwill and other intangible assd#ring the year ended December 31,
2012 (in thousandy:

Other
Goodwill Intangible Assets Total
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 101,76 $ 43,19 $ 144,95
Acquired during the yes 44,07+ 30,64: 74,71,
Adjustments to prior year estimai (50) 50 -
Translation adjustmel - 18¢ 18¢
Amortization - (10,886 (10,886
Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 145,78 $ 63,18! $ 208,97

The following table presents goodwill balance byarable segment as of December 31, 2013 and @@1Rousands)

As of December 31

2013 2012
Service Center $ 142,71 $ 112,67
Innovative Pumping Solutior 28,25¢ 15,98(
Supply Chain Service 17,13¢ 17,13¢
Total $ 188,11 $ 145,78
The following table presents a summary of amortzabher intangible assetsn(thousands:
As of December 31, 201 As of December 31, 201
Gross Gross _
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount, net Amount Amortization Amount, net
Vendor agreemen $ 2,49 $ (1,205 $ 1,29 $ 2,49 $ (1,081 $ 1,41
Customer relationshiy 109,89 (42,468 67,42¢ 90,85: (30,010 60,84
Non-compete
agreement 1,73¢ (737 1,00z 1,541 (608 93z
Total $114,13 $ (44,410 $ 69,72 $ 94,88t $ (31,699 $ 63,18!

Other intangible assets are generally amortized simaightline basis over their estimated useful lives. Anzatton expense was $11.8 milli
$10.9 million, and $6.6 million for the years end2elcember 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectivEe estimated future annual amortiza
of intangible assets for each of the next five geard thereafter are as follogs thousands)

2014 12,96¢
2015 11,53
2016 9,172
2017 9,08¢
2018 8,35¢
Thereaftel 18,60¢

The weighted average remaining estimated life éavdor agreements, customer relationships, and oopete agreements are 11.9 years, 7.1
years, and 3.4 years, respectivi
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NOTE 8 — LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consisted of the followingn(thousands:

December 31

2013 2012

Line of credit $ 76,84 $ 104,521
Term loan 109,37! 130,00(
Promissory note payable in monthly installment8.8%6 through January 2021, collateralized by
equipmen 6,00( -
Unsecured subordinated notes payable in quartestgliments at 5%
through November 201 2,361 3,87(

194,58! 238,39t
Less: Current portio (26,213 (22,057
Total Lon¢-term Debi $168,37 $ 216,33

On July 11, 2012 DXP entered into a credit faciligith Wells Fargo Bank National Association, asulag Lender, Swingline Lender a
Administrative Agent for the lenders. On Decembgyr 3012 the Company amended the agreement whichaised the Credit Facility by $
million (the “Facility”). At December 31, 2013, the Facility consisted o@%4 million term loan and a revolving credit fagithat provided
$262.5 million line of credit.

The line of credit portion of the Facility providélte option of interest at LIBOR plus an applicamlargin ranging from 1.25% to 2.25% or
prime plus an applicable margin from 0.25% to 1.2&B&re the applicable margin is determined by tbm@any’s leverage ratio as defined by
the Facility at the date of borrowing. Rates far trm loan component were 25 basis points hidtar the line of credit borrowings.
Commitment fees of 0.20% to 0.40% per annum weyelgla on the portion of the Facility capacity nouise at any given time on the line of
credit. Commitment fees are included as intereliénconsolidated statements of income.

Primarily because the leverage ratio was higher dfte acquisition of HSE that occurred on July 2012, interest rates in effect on July
2012 were approximately 70 basis points higher ttheay were immediately prior to the acquisition. ppgximately $0.7 million of de
issuance costs associated with the prior crediitiaoere expensed in 2012.

On December 31, 2013, the LIBOR based rate onitleeof credit portion of the Facility was LIBOR glid.50%, the prime based rate of
Facility was prime plus 0.50%, the LIBOR based matethe term loan portion of the Facility was LIB@QRis 1.75% and the commitment
was 0.25%. At December 31, 2013, $186.2 million wasowed under the Facility at a weighted averagerest rate of approximately 1.!
under the LIBOR options. At December 31, 2013,Goenpany had $154.1 million available for borrowingder the Facility.

The Facility contains financial covenants definvarious financial measures and levels of these wmeaswith which the Company m
comply. Covenant compliance is assessed as ofcgater end. Substantially all of the Compangssets are pledged as collateral to sec
the credit facility.

At December 31, 2013, the Facility’s principal fitéal covenants included:

Consolidated Leverage Ratio — The Facility requitteat the Companyg’ Consolidated Leverage Ratio, determined at tlieofreach fisci
quarter, not exceed 3.5 to 1.0 as of the last @@ach quarter from the closing date through M&th2015 and not to exceed 3.25to 1.00"
June 30, 2015 and thereafter. The ConsolidatedrageeRatio is defined as the outstanding indebtdd&vided by Consolidated EBITDA -
the period of four consecutive fiscal quarters mgdin or immediately prior to such date. Indebtadris defined under the Facility for finan
covenant purposes as: (a) all obligations of DXPbiarrowed money including but not limited to olaligons evidenced by bonds, debent
notes or other similar instruments; (b) obligatidnspay deferred purchase price of property orisesy (c) capital lease obligations;
obligations under conditional sale or other titdéention agreements relating to property purcha@dssued and outstanding letters of cr
and (f) contingent obligations for funded indebtesin At December 31, 2013, the Company’s Leverag® Ras 1.48 to 1.00.

Consolidated Fixed Charge Coverage Rafibe-Facility required that the Consolidated Fixduhfge Coverage Ratio on the last day of
quarter be not less than 1.25 to 1.0 with “Constéid Fixed Charge Coverage RatitEfined as the ratio of (a) Consolidated EBITDA tioe
period of 4 consecutive fiscal quarters endingushalate minus capital expenditures during suclog€excluding acquisitions) minus inco
tax expense paid minus the aggregate amount oictest payments defined in the agreement to (b)ritexest expense paid in cash, schec
principal payments in respect of long-term debt #redcurrent portion of capital lease obligatiooasguch 12nonth period, determined in e:
case on a consolidated basis for DXP and its sisivsd. At December 31, 2013, the Company's Codiatdd Fixed Charge Coverage R
was 2.84 to 1.00.

Asset Coverage Ratio —The Facility required thatAlsset Coverage Ratio at any time be not less XHato 1.0 with “Asset Coverage Ratio”
defined as the ratio of (a) the sum of 85% of reebants receivable plus 65% of net inventory tot(lg) aggregate outstanding amount o
revolving credit outstandings on such date. At Deloer 31, 2013, the Company's Asset Coverage RatsoA99 to 1.00.

Consolidated EBITDA as defined under the Facildy financial covenant purposes means, without dafibn, for any period the consolida
net income of DXP plus, to the extent deductedalsudating consolidated net income, depreciatiomgrization (except to the extent that s
nor-cash charges are reserved for cash charges tdkée ita the future), nc-cash compensation including stock option or restiicstoc



expense, interest expense and income tax expent®xés based on income, certain ¢inge costs associated with our acquisitions, irgggr
costs, facility consolidation and closing costyesance costs and expenses andtone-compensation costs in connection with the esitipn
of HSE and any permitted acquisition, writewn of cash expenses incurred in connection vaigheixisting credit agreement and extraordi
losses less interest income and extraordinary gé@ioasolidated EBITDA shall be adjusted to give foonma effect to disposals or busin
acquisitions assuming that such transaction(s)dsadrred on the first day of the period excludiigreome statement items attributable to
assets or equity interests that is subject to slighosition made during the period and includingirdome statement items attributable
property or equity interests of such acquisitioesmtted under the Facility.
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The following table sets forth the computationiué t everage Ratio as of December 31, 20ib3liousands, except for ratids

For the Twelve Months endec
December 31, 2013

Leverage
Ratio

Income before taxe

Interest expens

Depreciation and amortizatic
Stock compensation exper
Pro forma acquisition EBITD;
Other adjustments

A Defined EBITDA

As of December 31, 201
Total lon¢-term debt, including current maturiti
(B) Defined indebtedness

Leverage Ratio (B)/(A)

$94,71
6,28z
21,66(
2,83:
6,61z
(351

$ 131,75,

$ 194,58
$ 194,58

1.4¢

As of December 31, 2013, the maturities of longrtelebt under the Compasyterm loan for the next five years and thereaftere as follow

(in thousands:

2014 $ 26,21
2015 32,67:
2016 35,20¢
2017 97,70:
2018 87¢
Thereafte! 1,91¢
Subsequent to year end, the Company entered intoreemded and Restated Credit Agreement, furtheudised in Note 18.
NOTE 9 - INCOME TAXES
The components of income before income taxes af@laws (in thousands:
Years Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011
Domestic $ 86,56 $ 84,34¢ $51,99!
Foreign 8,15( 66( -
Total income before taxes $94,71 $ 85,00! $ 51,99!
The provision for income taxes consists of theolwlhg (in thousand$:
Years Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011
Current-
Federa $21,48: $ 27,39 $ 15,40:
State 2,681 4,43¢ 2,731
Foreign 7,48¢ 963 -
31,64¢ 32,79 18,13:
Deferred-
Federa 8,631 1,83t 2,081
State 167 14€ 34E
Foreign (5,964 (751 -
2,83¢ 1,23( 2,42¢
$ 34,48l $ 34,02: $ 20,55!

The difference between income taxes computed afetlheral statutory income tax rate (35%) and thavigion for income taxes is as follo
(in thousands:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Income taxes computed at federal statutory $ 33,15( $ 29,75! $18,19¢
State income taxes, net of federal ber 1,852 2,917 1,99¢




Other, primarily non-tax deductible, or non-taxaitéens (522 1,35¢ 361
$ 34,48 $ 34,02 $20,55(
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The net current and noncurrent components of deféncome tax balances are as follovrsthousand$:

December 31,

2013 2012
Net current asse $ 7,71 $ 5,18.
Net nor-current liabilities (21,938 (16,448
Net assets (liabilities $ (14,225 $ (11,266

Deferred tax liabilities and assets were compridfettie following (in thousands:

December 31

2013 2012

Deferred tax asset

Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 284 $ 2,40
Inventories 2,51¢ 1,80:
Accruals 94kt 842
Other 1,401 342
Total deferred tax asse 7,70¢ 5,39¢
Less valuation allowance - -
Total deferred tax assets, net of valuation allove: 7,70¢ 5,39¢
Deferred tax liabilities

Goodwill 1,15¢ 2,271
Intangibles (20,707 (9,232
Property and equipme (11,697 (8,430
Unremitted foreign earning (818 (577
Cumulative translation adjustme 1,27¢ (298
Other (1,146 (394,
Net deferred tax asset (liabilit $ (14,225 $ (11,266
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NOTE 10 - SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
Restricted Stoc

Under the restricted stock plan approved by ouredt@ders (the “Restricted Stock Plant)lirectors, consultants and employees ma
awarded shares of DX®tommon stock. The shares of restricted stockiggaio employees and that are outstanding as oérleer 31, 201
vest in accordance with one of the following vegtithedules: 100% one year after date of gran8%3&ach year for three years after da
grant; 20% each year for five years after the gdane; or 10% each year for ten years after thetgtate. The Restricted Stock Plan prov
that on each July 1 during the term of the plarheamnemployee director of DXP will be granted the numbgwhole shares calculated
dividing $75 thousand by the closing price of teencnon stock on such July 1. The shares of redtristieck granted to noemployee directo
of DXP vest one year after the grant date. Theviaine of restricted stock awards is measured baged the closing prices of DX®tommo
stock on the grant dates and is recognized as awafien expense over the vesting period of the dsvadnce restricted stock vests,
shares of the Company’s stock are issued.

The following table provides certain informatiorgaeding the shares authorized and outstanding uhdeRestricted Stock Plan at Decen
31, 2013:

Number of shares authorized for gra 800,00t
Number of shares granti (785,159
Number of shares forfeite 108,90¢
Number of shares available for future gre 123,75(
Weightec-average grant price of granted she $ 23.4¢

Changes in restricted stock for the twelve monttded December 31, 2013 were as follows:

Number of Weighted Average
Shares Grant Price
Non-vested at December 31, 20 210,65¢ $ 26.85
Grantec 96,78¢ $51.08
Forfeited (28,911 $37.15
Vested (67,021 $27.85
Non-vested at December 31, 2013 211,51( $36.17

Compensation expense, associated with restrictak,stecognized in the years ended December 313,20012 and 2011 was $2.8 milli
$2.0 million, and $1.3 million, respectively. Re&dtincome tax benefits recognized in earnings ényiars ended December 31, 2013,
and 2011 were approximately $1.1 million, $0.8 il and $0.5 million, respectively. Unrecognizeoinpensation expense under
Restricted Stock Plan at December 31, 2013 andrbleee31, 2012 was $5.7 million and $4.6 milliorspectively. As of December 31, 20
the weighted average period over which the unrezegrcompensation expense is expected to be rexamyid 25.1 months.

NOTE 11 - EARNINGS PER SHARE DATA

Basic earnings per share is computed based on tedigiverage shares outstanding and excludes @ils@gurities. Diluted earnings per sl
is computed including the impacts of all potenyiailutive securities.

The following table sets forth the computation abic and diluted earnings per share for the peiimtisated (n thousands, except per share
data):

December 31

2013 2012 2011
Basic:
Weighted average shares outstanc 14,43¢ 14,37+ 14,30:
Net income $ 60,23 $ 50,98! $ 31,43
Convertible preferred stock dividel (90) (90) (90)
Net income attributable to common shareholt $ 60,14 $ 50,89 $ 31,34
Per share amou $ 4.1 $ 3.5 $ 2.1¢
Diluted:
Weighted average shares outstant 14,43¢ 14,37« 14,30:
Assumed conversion of convertible
preferred stocl 84C 84C 84C
Total dilutive share 15,27¢ 15,21« 15,14:

Net income attributable 1



common shareholde

Convertible preferred stock dividel
Net income for dilute
earnings per sha

Per share amou
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$ 60,14

$ 50,89! $ 31,34

9C 90 90

$ 60,23 $ 50,98! $ 31,43
$ 3.9 $ 33 $ 2.0t




NOTE 12 - BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

All of the Companys acquisitions have been accounted for using thhehpse method of accounting. Revenues and expefisks acquire
businesses have been included in the accompangimgplidated financial statements beginning on thespective dates of acquisition. -
allocation of purchase price to the acquired assedsliabilities is based on estimates of fair nearkalue and may be prospectively revise
and when additional information the Company is éiwgiconcerning certain asset and liability valaas is obtained, provided that s
information is received no later than one yearrdfie date of acquisition. Goodwill is calculatexlthe excess of the consideration transft
over the net assets recognized and representaitine feconomic benefits arising from other assetpiiged that could not be individua
identified and separately recognized. It specifjcaicludes the expected synergies and other bisribfat we believe will result from combin
the operations of our acquisitions with the operatiof DXP and any intangible assets that do natifgufor separate recognition such as
assembled workforce.

On January 31, 2012, DXP acquired substantiallypfathe assets of Mid-Continent Safety ("Mbntinent”). DXP acquired this busines:
expand DXP's geographic presence in the MidwesieBn and strengthen DXP's safety products offeldP paid approximately $3.7 millic
for Mid-Continent, which was borrowed under our existingddrfacility. Estimated goodwill of $1.1 millionnd intangible assets of $.
million were recognized for this acquisition. Afl the estimated goodwill is included in the Servi@enters segment.

On February 29, 2012, DXP acquired substantiallpfathe assets of Pump & Power Equipment, Incufip & Power"). DXP acquired tf
business to expand DXP's geographic presence imithavestern U.S. and strengthen DXP's municipal pungglyscts and services offeril
DXP paid approximately $1.9 million for Pump & Pawehich was borrowed under our existing credit lfgci Estimated goodwill of $0.
million and intangible assets of $0.8 million weeeognized for this acquisition. All of the estimétgoodwill is included in the Service Cen
segment.

On April 2, 2012, DXP acquired the stock of Aledtw;. ("Aledco”). DXP acquired Aledco to expand atsility to service customers in the
and gas, water and waste water treatment, phariiesleand industrial markets in and around Penreyit. DXP paid approximately $t
million for Aledco which was borrowed under our skig credit facility. Estimated goodwill of $3.4ilion and intangible assets of $.
million were recognized for this acquisition. Nookthe estimated goodwill or intangible assets expected to be tax deductible. All of
estimated goodwill is included in the Service Centegment.

On May 1, 2012, DXP completed the acquisition oflustrial Paramedic Services through its wholly osvrsaibsidiary, DXP Cana
Enterprises Ltd. Industrial Paramedic Servicespsoaider of industrial medical and safety serviteindustrial customers operating in ren
locations and large facilities in western CanaddPIacquired this business to expand DXP's geogrgmt@isence into Canada and to ex|
our safety services offering. Industrial Parame®kicvices is headquartered in Calgary, Alberta getaies out of three locations in Calg
Nisku and Dawson Creek. The $25.3 million purchasee was financed with $20.6 million of borrowingsder DXP's existing credit facili
$2.5 million of promissory notes bearing a 5% iegtrate and 19,685 shares of DXP common stockn&istd goodwill of $12.3 million ar
intangible assets of $9.9 million were recognizedthis acquisition. None of the estimated goodwilintangible assets are expected to b
deductible. All of the estimated goodwill is inckdlin the Service Centers segment.

On May 31, 2012, DXP acquired the stock of Austid ®enholm Industrial Sales Alberta, Inc. (“ADIDXP acquired this business to exp
DXP's geographic presence in Western Canada aadgsien DXP's pump products and services offedd§P paid approximately $2
million for ADI which was borrowed under our exisgi credit facility. Estimated goodwill of $0.3 nidh and intangible assets of $0.6 mill
were recognized for this acquisition. None of tiséinreated goodwill or intangibles are expected totdoe deductible. All of the estimat
goodwill is included in the Service Centers segment

On July 11, 2012, DXP completed the acquisitioM8E Integrated Ltd. ISE"). DXP Canada Enterprises Ltd., acquired athefoutstandir
common shares of HSE by way of a plan of arrangémeder theBusiness Corporations A¢Alberta) (the "Arrangement"). Pursuant to
Arrangement, HSE shareholders received CDN $1.8&éh per each common share of HSE held. Thettatedaction value is approximat
$85 million, including approximately $4 million mebt and approximately $3 million in transactiostso The purchase price was financed
borrowings under DX credit facility. DXP acquired HSE to expand oudlustrial health and safety services offering.rgated goodwill ¢
$27.9 million and intangible assets of $8.8 milliware recognized for this acquisition. None of ésémated goodwill or intangible assets
expected to be tax deductiblall of the estimated goodwill is included in therBiee Centers Segment.

On October 1, 2012, DXP acquired substantiallyofihe assets of Jerzy Supply, Inc. (“JerzyDXP acquired this business to expand D.
geographic presence in the Southern U.S. and stremd>XP's industrial and hydraulic hoses offeriDiP paid approximately $5.3 millic
for Jerzy which was borrowed under our existingditréacility. Estimated goodwill of $0.6 million @hintangible assets of $2.0 million w
recognized for this acquisition. All of the estimdtgoodwill is included in the Service Centers Segm

On April 16, 2013, DXP acquired all of the stockN#étional Process Equipment Inc. (“NatPrafijyough its wholly owned subsidiary, D.
Canada Enterprises Ltd. DXP acquired this busitegxpand DXP’s geographic presence in Canada ta@agshen DXPS pump, integrate
system packaging, compressor, and related equipofiening. The $40.1 million purchase price wasficed with $36.6 million of borrowin
under DXP's existing credit facility and 52,542 saof DXP common stock. Additionally, the purchaggeement included an eawnt
provision, which states that former owners of NatPray earn $6.0 million based on achievement agamnings target during the first yea
DXP’s ownership. The fair value of the earn-outargled at the acquisition date was $2.8 million.oAecember 31, 2013, the Company’
earneut liability was estimated to be zero and $2.8iarilwas recorded as a reduction of selling, gdraard administrative expense. Estimi
goodwill of $24.6 million and intangible assets $f4.8 million were recognized for this acquisitiddone of the estimated goodwill
intangible assets are expected to be tax deducflliie estimated goodwill associated with this asitjon is included in both the Serv
Centers segment and IPS segment.



On May 17, 2013, DXP acquired substantially altte# assets of Tucker Tool Company, Inc. (“TuckeolTio DXP acquired this business
expand DXP's geographic presence in the northe®h &hd strengthen DXP's industrial cutting toolerfig. DXP paid approximately $¢
million for Tucker Tool which was borrowed underaxisting credit facility. Estimated goodwill oBR and intangible assets of $1.5 mil
were recognized for this acquisition. All of theiesmted goodwill is included in the Service Centsggment.

On July 1, 2103, DXP acquired all of the stock ¢dgka Pump & Supply, Inc. (APS). DXP acquired thisiness to expand DXP's geogra
presence in Alaska. DXP paid approximately $13.0anifor APS which was borrowed under our existorgdit facility. Estimated goodw
of $8.1 million and intangible assets of $4.1 roilliwere recognized for this acquisition. None &f éstimated goodwill or intangible assets
expected to be tax deductible. All of the estirdageodwill is included in the Service Centers segime
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On July 31, 2013, DXP acquired substantially altred assets of Tool-Tech Industrial Machine & Sypphc. (“Tool-Tech”).DXP acquire:
this business to enhance our metal working prodffeting in the southwest region of the United 8satDXP paid approximately $7.2 milli
for Tool-Tech which was borrowed under our existing creaiiflity. Estimated goodwill of $4.1 million and amgible assets of $2.4 milli
were recognized for this acquisition. All of theiested goodwill is included in the Service Centsggment.

The value as signed to the non-compete agreemedhtsustomer relationships for business acquisitioei® determined by discounting the
estimated cash flows associated with non-competeawents and customer relationships as of thetlatecquisition was consummated. The
estimated cash flows were based on estimated regaret of operating expenses and net of capitajebdor assets that contribute to the
projected cash flow from these assets. The prajeeteenues and operating expenses were estimaged ba management estimates. Net
capital charges for assets that contribute to ptegecash flow were based on the estimated fairevaf those assets. For the acquisitions
discussed above, discount rates of 15.9% to 18.€%6 deemed appropriate for valuing these assetearabased on the risks associated witl
the respective cash flows taking into consideratimnacquired company’s weighted average costpfata

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2013nbssés acquired during 2012 and 2013 contributied &4 $162.7 million and $6:
million, respectively, and earnings before taxeamroximately $7.2 million and $1.4 million, resgieely.

The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of the assets acquired and liabilities asduimeng 2012 and 2013 in connection \
the acquisitions described abovia (housandy:

Cash $ 12,80
Accounts Receivable, n 53,31«
Inventory 12,72;
Property and equipme 38,42
Goodwill and intangible 139,39:
Other assets 3,79:
Assets acquired 260,45(
Current liabilities assume (49,482
Non-current liabilities assumed (22,406
Net assets acquired $ 188,56

The pro forma unaudited results of operations lier Company on a consolidated basis for the twelwaths ended December 31, 2013
2012, assuming the acquisition of businesses cdatplim 2013 and 2012 were consummated as of JariyaPPl2 are as follows if
thousands, except per share data

Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012
Net sales $1,284,46¢ $1,279,87(
Net income $ 61,92¢ $ 55,30¢
Per share daf
Basic earning $ 4.2t $ 3.823
Diluted earning $ 4.0F $ 3.62

The pro forma unaudited results of operations tier Company on a consolidated basis for the twelwaths ended December 31, 2012
2011, assuming the acquisition of businesses cdatplim 2012 and 2011 were consummated as of JariyaPpll are as follows if
thousands, except per share data

Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011
Net sales $1,177,09] $1,062,54(
Net income $ 54,03: $ 41,35¢
Per share dal
Basic earning $ 3.7¢ $ 288
Diluted earning $ 3.5t $ 272

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company leases equipment, automobiles ancedizilities under various operating leases. Theréuminimum rental commitments as
December 31, 2013, for non-cancelable leases dmlass (in thousands:

2014 $24,73!
2015 19,82¢
2016 15,057

2017 10,52¢



2018 5,02¢
Thereaftel 2,931
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Rental expense for operating leases was $27.6omil$21.6 million and $14.2 million for the yearsded December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2
respectively.

The Company’s commitments related to long-term debtdiscussed in Note 8.

From time to time, the Company is a party to vasidegal proceedings arising in the ordinary cowkéusiness. While DXP is unable
predict the outcome of these lawsuits, it belietred the ultimate resolution will not have, eithiedividually or in the aggregate, a mate
adverse effect on DXP’s consolidated financial posj cash flows, or results of operations.

NOTE 14 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company offers a 401(K) plan which is eligitdesubstantially all employees. During 2013, 204d 3011, the Company elected to m
employee contributions at a rate of 50 percentpfai4 percent of salary deferral. The Company ritmutied $2.7 million, $1.9 million, ai
$1.5 million to the 401(K) plan in the years enditember 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively.

NOTE 15- OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other comprehensive income generally representhaliges in shareholdeejuity during the period, except those resultirgrfinvestmen
by, or distributions to, shareholders.

During 2013, 2012, and 2011 the Company had netrotbmprehensive (loss) income of ($0.6) millio®,45million and $0.1 millior
respectively, related to changes in the marketevafuan investment with quoted market prices imetive market for identical instruments.

During 2012 and 2013, the Company acquired foutiesthat operate in Canada. These Canadianemtitaintain financial data in Canac
dollars. Upon consolidation, the Company transl#tesfinancial data from these foreign subsidiaimts U.S. dollars and records cumula
translation adjustments in other comprehensivenreoThe Company recorded ($3.0) million and $0.Bioniin translation adjustments
other comprehensive income during the years endegmber 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

NOTE 16 — SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHICAL REPORTING

The Companys reportable business segments are: Service Ceftas/ative Pumping Solutions and Supply Chainviges. The Servic
Centers segment is engaged in providing maintenav&® products, equipment and integrated servicetduding logistics capabilities,
industrial customers. The Service Centers segmemtiges a wide range of MRO products in the rotateguipment, bearing, pov
transmission, hose, fluid power, metal working,tdéaer, industrial supply, safety products and gagervices categories. The Innova
Pumping Solutions segment fabricates and asserob&#smmade pump packages. The Supply Chain Services segnamages all or part o
customer's supply chain, including warehouse anéntory management.

The high degree of integration of the Compangperations necessitates the use of a substaatider of allocations and apportionments ir
determination of business segment information.sSate shown net of intersegment eliminations.
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Business Segmented Financial Informat

The following table sets out financial informatimglating the Company’s segmenis thousands:

Innovative Supply
Service Pumping Chain
Years Ended December 31, Centers Solutions Services Total

2013

Sales $884,82. $209,17! $147,51: $1,241,51
Operating income for reportable segme 107,14. 33,76¢ 12,49( 153,39¢
Identifiable assets at year e 500,97¢ 66,00 48,04¢ 615,03:
Capital expenditure 6,321 357 20¢€ 6,88¢
Depreciatior 7,77C 44¢ 36€ 8,58
Amortization 8,57¢ 1,04: 2,21: 11,83(
Interest expens 3,762 1,63¢ 884 6,282
2012

Sales $779,03! $161,83 $156,23! $1,097,11
Operating income for reportable segme 88,92 32,09¢ 12,49t 133,51¢
Identifiable assets at year e 440,27 56,98: 50,51¢ 547,76¢
Capital expenditure 4,82¢ 261 - 5,09(
Depreciatior 5,73¢ 30¢ 17t 6,21°F
Amortization 8,79¢ 663 1,42¢ 10,88¢
Interest expens 3,701 1,24: 61€ 5,56(
2011

Sales $560,23. $102,30! $144,46° $807,00!
Operating income for reportable segme 64,49 16,92( 8,45¢ 89,86¢
Identifiable assets at year e 294,41( 43,63¢ 56,05¢ 394,10
Capital expenditure 1,25¢ 31C 73 1,641
Depreciatior 2,09( 32¢ 27¢€ 2,692
Amortization 4,72°¢ 67% 1,172 6,572
Interest expens 2,07: 98¢ 45¢ 3,51¢

Years Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011

Operating income for reportable segme $ 153,39 $ 133,51 $ 89,861
Adjustments for

Amortization of intangible 11,83( 10,88¢ 6,572
Corporate and other expense, 40,64« 32,11( 27,80¢
Total operating incom 100,92: 90,52: 55,48t
Interest expens 6,28 5,56( 3,51¢
Other expenses (income), | (75 (47 (28)
Income before income tax $9471 $ 85,00¢ $ 51,99
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The Company had capital expenditures at Corpor®)® million, $9.0 million, and $2.5 million fahe years ended December 31, 2
2012, and 2011, respectively. The Company had ifiile assets at Corporate of $20.3 million, $2ebdlion, and $11.2 million as
December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectivelypd@ate depreciation was $1.2 million, $1.0 milli@md $0.8 million for the years ent
December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively.

Geographical Information

Revenues are presented in geographic area badedation of the facility shipping products or prdirig services. Londjved assets are bas
on physical locations and are comprised of thebnek value of property.

The Company’s revenues and property and equipmegédbgraphical location are as follgim thousands)

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Revenue
United State: $1,075,96 $1,039,71 $ 807,00!
Canada 165,54¢ 57,39¢ -
Total $1,241,51 $1,097,11 $ 807,00!

As of December 31

2013 2012
Property and Equipment, n
United State: $ 32,87! $ 31,33
Canada 25,37t 27,37¢
Total $58,25: $58,71:

NOTE 17 - QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (unaudite d)

Summarized quarterly financial information for tears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 201ifddl@ss (in millions, except per sha
data):

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2013

Sales $290.: $ 307.¢ $329.° $ 313.¢
Gross profit 89.1 91.k 97.1 94.¢
Net income 13.2 13.7 16.4 16.€
Earnings per shar- basic $0.9: $ 0.9t $ 1.1¢ $1.17
Earnings per shar- diluted $0.87 $ 0.9( $1.07 $1.1(
2012

Sales $ 252.1 $261.¢ $ 289.¢ $ 293.(
Gross profit 71.t 76.€ 83.t 87.t
Net income 11.€ 12.2 13.1 14.1
Earnings per shar- basic $ 0.8 $ 0.8¢ $0.9: $ 0.9¢
Earnings per shar- diluted $0.77 $ 0.8( $ 0.8¢ $0.9:
2011

Sales $183.: $197.° $ 207.¢ $218.:
Gross profit 52.4 57.2 59.t 62.€
Net income 6.3 7.€ 8.2 9.2
Earnings per shar- basic $ 0.4¢ $ 0.5: $ 0.5¢ $ 0.6¢
Earnings per shar- diluted $ 0.4z $ 0.5( $ 0.5t $ 0.6

The sum of the individual quarterly earnings pearstamounts may not agree with year-to-date easmprgshare as each quaderbmputatio
is based on the weighted average number of shatetanding during the quarter, the weighted avesigek price during the quarter and
dilutive effects of the stock options and restidgics¢ock in each quarter.

NOTE 18 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 2, 2014, the Company completed the sitiqui of all of the equity securities and unitsB#7, LLC (“B27”) by way of a Securiti¢
Purchase Agreement to expand DXRump packaging offering. The total transactiolu&avas approximately $293.6 million, exclud
approximately $1.0 million in transaction costsagwmized within SG&A in the 2013 statement of inconTde purchase price was finan
with borrowings under DXP’s amended credit facibyd approximately $4.0 million of DXP common stock

DXP has not completed appraisals of intangiblesBar, and therefore, has made preliminary estimfdegurposes of this disclosu



Estimated goodwill of $227.3 million and intangildesets of $66.3 million were recognized for thuguasition. Approximately $235.0 millic
of the estimated goodwill or intangible assetseaqgected not to be tax deductible. The estimatedwdl associated with this acquisition v
be included in the IPS segment.
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The following table summarizes the preliminary mstied fair values of the assets acquired and iliglsilassumed in the acquisition of B@
thousands)

Cash $ 2,53
Accounts Receivable, n 51,44¢
Inventory 6,472
Property and equipme 14,57:
Goodwill and intangible 293,58t
Other assets 94¢
Assets acquired 369,56°
Current liabilities assume (52,818
Non-current liabilities assumed (23,198
Net assets acquired $ 293,55

The pro forma unaudited results of operations tier Company on a consolidated basis for the twelwaths ended December 31, 2013
2012, assuming the acquisition of B27 was consumdnas of January 1, 2012 are as followsthousands, except per share data

Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012
Net sales $1,415,12¢ $ 1,239,00¢
Net income $ 67,75¢ $ 53,45:
Per share daf
Basic earning $ 4.67 $ 3.7C
Diluted earning: $ 4.4c $ 351

In connection with the closing of this acquisitiam January 2, 2014, the Company entered into aendied and Restated Credit Agreer
with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, asuileg Lender, and Administrative Agent for otherders (the “New Facility”)amending th
Company’s existing credit facility initially entedénto on July 11, 2012 and amended on Decembe2(BID.

The New Facility provides a $250 million term loand a $350 million revolving line of credit fagjlito the Company. The New Facil
provides the option of interest at LIBOR (or CDGRR €anadian dollar loans) plus an applicable margnging from 1.25% to 2.50% or pri
(or Canadian prime for Canadian dollar loans) pluspplicable margin from 0.25% to 1.50% whereahyglicable margin is determined by
Companys leverage ratio as defined by the New Facilityohshe last day of the fiscal quarter most recemthded prior to the date
borrowing. Commitment fees of 0.20% to 0.45% peruem will be payable on the portion of the New FHacitapacity not in use at any gi\
time on the line of credit.

The Company incurred approximately $2.0 milliondiebt issuance costs related to the New Facilite Mew Facility will expire five yea
after the closing date of the New Facility.

We have evaluated subsequent events through tleetlatconsolidated financial statements were filgth the Securities and Exchatr
Commission. There were no additional subsequenttetbat required recognition for disclosure.

ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéienting and Financial Disclosure
None.
ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

DXP carried out an evaluation, under the superisiod with the participation of its managementluding the Chief Executive Officer and"
Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness adDafcember 31, 2013, of the design and operatiddXd?’'s disclosure controls and procedi
pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 and &dbisclosure controls and procedures are theralsrdnd other procedures of DXP that
designed to ensure that information required talibelosed by DXP in the reports that it files obsits under the Securities Exchange A«
1934, as amended, (the “Exchange Ad$’yecorded, processed, summarized and reportédinvthe time periods specified in the rules
forms of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commisétiee “Commission”)Disclosure controls and procedures include, witHouitation,
controls and procedures designed to ensure thatniaftion required to be disclosed by DXP in theorepthat it files or submits under

Exchange Act, is accumulated and communicatedetdsuers management, including its principal executive pndcipal financial officer:
or persons performing similar functions, as apgederto allow timely decisions regarding requirésctbsure. Based upon that evaluation
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial io&r concluded that DXB’disclosure controls and procedures were effeetsvef the end
the period covered by this Report.
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Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
(A) Management’'s Annual Report on Intéi@antrol Over Financial Reporting

Management's report on the Companynternal control over financial reporting is inded on page 36 of this Report under
heading Manageme's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Repayt

The effectiveness of our internal control over Ricial reporting at December 31, 2013 has been edidiy Hein & Associates LL
the independent registered public accounting finat tilso audited our financial statements. Theiorieis included on page 35 of t
Report under the heading Report of Independentdiagid Public Accounting Firm on Internal ContreéoFinancial Reporting

(B) Changes in Internal Control over Fical Reporting
None

ITEM 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART Il
ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govenae
The information required by this item will be indied in our Definitive Proxy statement for the 2@4@hual Meeting of Shareholders that
will file with the SEC within 120 days of the end the fiscal year to which this Report relates (tieoxy Statement”Jand is herek
incorporated by reference thereto.
ITEM 11. Executive Compensation
The information required by this item will be indied in the Proxy Statement and is hereby incorpdrby reference.
ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aidinagement and Related Shareholder Matters
The information required by this item will be indled in the Proxy Statement and is hereby incorpdrhy reference.
ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence
The information required by this item will be indied in the Proxy Statement and is hereby incorpdrby reference.

ITEM 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by this item will be indled in the Proxy Statement and is hereby incorpdrhay reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) Documents included in this report:

1. Financial Statements (included unt&Em|8):
DXP Enterprises, Inc. and Subsidiaries Page
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing 24
Management Report on Internal Contt 26
Consolidated Balance She: 27
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehehsiome 28
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' E« 29
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl¢ 30
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 31
2. Financial Statement Schedul
Schedule I~ Valuation and Qualifying Accoun
All other schedules have been omitted since theired information is not significant or is includéd the Consolidated Financ
Statements or notes thereto or is not applicable.
3. Exhibits:
The following exhibits are filed herewith or arearporated by reference to exhibits previouslydfieth the Commission.
Exhibit
No. Description
3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amen@etbrporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to th@mpanys Registration Statement
Form $-8 (Reg. No. 33-61953), filed with the Commission on August 20, 8p!
3.2 Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibt ® the Company's Registration Statement on F&n(Reg. No. 333:0021), file
with the Commission on August 12, 199
3.3 Amendment No. 1 to Bylaws of DXP Enterprises, Ifincorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the Camps Current Report
Form &K, filed with the Commission on July 28, 201
4.1 Form of Common Stock certificate (incorporabsdreference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company's Regfion Statement on Form &-
(Reg. No. 33-61953), filed with the Commission on August 20, 8p!
4.2 See Exhibit 3.1 for provisions of the Company'stRtesl Articles of Incorporation, as amended, dafjrthe rights of security holde!
4.3 See Exhibit 3.2 for provisions of the Company'saByd defining the rights of security holde
4.4 Form of Senior Debt Indenture of DXP Entemsisinc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit taZzhe Company Registratio

Statement on Form-3 (Reg. No. 33-166582), filed with the SEC on May 6, 201
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10.13
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10.16

10.17

Form of Subordinated Debt Indenture of DXPefmtises, Inc. (incorporated by reference to ExHit8 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form-3 (Reg. No. 33-166582), filed with the SEC on May 6, 201

Employment Agreement dated effective as of Jandar004, between DXP Enterprises, Inc. and David_Rle (incorporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Company’s AnrRaport on Form 1@ for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003d filéth the
Commission on March 11, 200«

Employment Agreement dated effective as of Jun@004, between DXP Enterprises, Inc. and Mac McClrivecorporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s QuaytB#port on Form 1@ for the quarterly period ended March 31, 200édfivith the
Commission on May 6, 2004

DXP Enterprises, Inc. 2005 Restricted Stlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14he Companys Annual Report on For
1C-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 dfilvith the Commission on March 10, 20(

Amendment Number One to Employment Agreement detfiedtive as of January 1, 2004, between DXP Enp, Inc. and David
Little (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10althe Company’s Current Report on ForrK 8filed with the Commission on July -
2006).

Amendment No. One to DXP Enterprises, l@052Restricted Stock Plan (incorporated by refezencExhibit 10.2 to the Comparsy’
Current Report on Formr-K, filed with the Commission on July 26, 200

Stock Purchase Agreement among DXP Enterprises, dscPurchaser, Precision Industries, Inc., apds#iling stockholders dai
August 19, 2007, (incorporated by reference to EixHi0.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Forig, 8iled with the Commissic
on August 21, 2007

Asset Purchase Agreement among DXP Enterprises,dad?urchaser, Lone Wolf Rental, LLC, Indian Finel Safety, Inc., and t
other parties named therein dated October 18, 20@3grporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to @@mpanys Current Report ¢
Form &K, filed with the Commission on October 22, 20(

Stock Purchase Agreement among DXP Enterprises, dscPurchaser, Vertex Corporate Holdings, Ithe,dtockholders of Vert
Corporate Holdings, Inc. and Watermilertex Enterprises, LLC, dated August 28, 2008&;dimporated by reference to Exhibit 10..
the Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed with the Commission on August 29, 200

Amendment Number Two to Employment Agreement datiéelctive January 1, 2004 between DXP Enterpribes, and David F
Little (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10dlthe Company’s Current Report on ForrK 8ied with the Commission on May 2
2009).

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2@b@reby DXP Enterprises, Inc. acquired the asge@uadna, Inc. (incorporat
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Compar@urrent Report on Form 8- filed with the Securities and Exchange Commis
on April 5, 2010)

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of Novemb&028, whereby DXP Enterprises, Inc. acquired tisetasof D&F Distributors, In
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1@.1he Company’s Current Report on ForriK 8filed with the Securities and Exchai
Commission on November 23, 201

Amendment Number One to Employment Agreement deffettive June 1, 2004 between DXP Enterprises,dnd Mac McConne
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tler@any's Current Report on Fori-K filed with the Commission on May 9, 201

David Little Equity Incentive Program dated May2811 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2his Company's Current Report
Form &K filed with the Commission on May 9, 201.

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of October A1, 2vhereby DXP Enterprises, Inc. acquired thestassef Kenneth Crosl
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to @@mpany’s Annual Report on Form KOfiled with the Commission on March
2012).

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decembe2(3@, whereby DXP Enterprises, Inc. acquired theetasof C.W. Rod To
Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1a@8he Company’s Annual Report on Form KGiled with the Commission ¢
March 9, 2012)

Arrangement Agreement, dated as of April 30, 20&Bereby DXP Enterprises, Inc. agreed to acquireofilthe shares of HS
Integrated Ltd., (incorporated by reference to BitHi0.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Fori, 8led with the Commission ¢
May 1, 2012)

Schedule A to the Arrangement Agreement dated Afil2012 between HSE Integrated Ltd., DXP Canadarfrises Ltd. and DX
Enterprises, Inc., Plan of Arrangement under Secti@3 of the Business Corporations Act (Albertain¢aded as of and effective J
28, 2012) (incorporated by reference to Exhibi21id. the Company’s Current Report on For{,&iled with the Commission on Ju
13, 2012).



10.18 Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 9, 20i&etwy DXP Enterprises, Inc. agreed to acquirefathe equity securities a
units of B27, LLC (incorporated by reference to ixh10.1 to the Companyg’ Current Report on Form 8K filed with the Comnos
on December 9, 2012

10.19 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated amnofdy 2, 2014 by and among DXP Enterprises, Barpand Wells Fargo Bar
National Association, as Issuing Lender, and Adstiative Agent for other lenders (incorporate bfemence to Exhibit 10.2 to t
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed with the Commission on January 6, 201

18.1 Letter of Independent Registered Public Accountfiign Regarding Change in Accounting Principle (impmrated by reference
Exhibit 18.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report oorrr 10Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2008&dfiwith the
Commission on May 12, 200¢

*21.1 Subsidiaries of the Compar
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*23.1 Consent of Hein & Associates LLP, Independent Reggsl Public Accounting Firn
*31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo Rule 13-14(a) and Rule 15-14(a) of the Exchange Act, as amenc
*31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursutato Rule 13-14(a) and Rule 15-14(a) of the Exchange Act, as amenc

*32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer muant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant tio8e206 of the Sarban&dxley Act of
2002, as amende

*32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pgwant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant ttio8e206 of the Sarban&3xley Act o
2002, as amende

101** Interactive Data File

Exhibits designated by the symbol * are filed withs Annual Report on Form 10- All exhibits not so designated are incorporatsy
reference to a prior filing with the Commissionilagdicated.

*x Pursuant to Rule 406T of RegulationTSthese interactive data files are deemed nal filepart of a registration statement prospe

for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securhietsof 1933 or Section 18 of the Securities Exa@Act of 1934 and otherwise
not subject to liability under these sectia

+ Indicates a management contract or compensal#nagp arrangement.

The Company undertakes to furnish to any sharehaderequesting a copy of any of the exhibits tis Report on upon payment to
Company of the reasonable costs incurred by thegaagnin furnishing any such exhibit.
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SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
DXP ENTERPRISES, INC.
Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
(in thousandy)

Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance
Beginning Cost and Other At End
Description of Year Expense! Accounts Deductions of Year

Year ended December 31, 2013

Deducted from assets accounts

Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 7,20« $ 2,01 $ 56( $ (984)1 $ 8,79¢
Year ended December 31, 2012

Deducted from assets accounts

Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 6,20: $ 1,28: $ 45« $ (735)1 $ 7,20:
Year ended December 31, 2011

Deducted from assets accounts

Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 3,54 $ 3,10: $ 19: $ (632)1 $ 6,20:

(1) Uncollectible accounts written off, net of reeoies.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this repoi
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

DXP ENTERPRISES, INC. (Registrant)
By: /s/DAVID R. LITTLE

David R. Little
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeeufifficer

Dated: March 11, 2014

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bépwhe following persons
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated:

NAME TITLE DATE
/s/David R. Little Chairman of the Board, President March 114201
David R. Little Chief Executive Officer and Directt
(Principal Executive Officer
/s/Mac McConnel Senior Vice President/Finance and March 11420
Mac McConnel Chief Financial Office

(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

/s/Cletus Davi¢ Director March 11, 2014
Cletus Dauvis

/sITimothy P. Halte Director March 11, 2014
Timothy P. Halte:

/s/Bryan Wimberly Director March 11, 2014
Bryan Wimberly
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Exhibit 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013
PMI Operating Company, Ltd., a Texas limited parsh
PMI Investment, LLC, a Delaware limited liabilitypiporation
Pump — PMI LLC, a Texas limited liability corporaiti
Vertex Corporate Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corfiora
Vertex-PFl, Inc., a Delaware corporation
PFI, LLC, a Rhode Island limited liability company
DXP Canada Enterprises, Ltd., a British Columbiapdaation
HSE Integrated, Ltd, an Alberta Corporation
Industrial Paramedic Services, Ltd., an Albertagoation
DXP Holdings, Inc., a Texas corporation

National Process Equipment, Inc. , an Alberta Crafion







Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegfion Statements (File Nos. 333-134606, 3336983 333-61953, 333-92875 and 333
92877) on Form S-8 and (File Nos. 333-134603 arRt1E8907) on Form 3-of DXP Enterprises, Inc. of our reports dated dhatl, 201<
relating to our audits of the consolidated finahstatements, the financial statement schedulesirgtrdhal control over financial reportit
included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of DXRt&prises, Inc. for the year ended December 31320

Hein & Associates LLP
Houston, Texas

March 11, 2014







Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, David R. Little, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of DXP Enterprises, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, néauisg with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,aiher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitieestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)), for the registrant and hax

€) Designed such disclosure controlsaodedures, or caused such disclosure controlpammdures to be designed undel
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to u:
others within those entities, particularly duriig toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control oveaficial reporting, or caused such internal contk@r financial reporting to be desigi
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repodimnd the preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of ttgisteant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémthis report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contaoid procedures, as of the end of the period covieyethis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changettie registrang internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabr® that has materially affect
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegyistrant’s internal control over financial repodj and

5. The registrang’ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitasmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and m@& weaknesses in the design or operation of falecontrol over financial reportil
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect tagistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial informatior
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materiddat involves management or other employees who laggnificant role in tt
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 11, 2014

/s/ David R. Little

David R. Little

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)







Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Mac McConnell, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of DXP Enterprises, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, néauisg with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,aiher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitieestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)), for the registrant and hax

€) Designed such disclosure controlsaodedures, or caused such disclosure controlpammdures to be designed undel
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to u:
others within those entities, particularly duriig toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control oveaficial reporting, or caused such internal contk@r financial reporting to be desigi
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repodimnd the preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thgsteant’s disclosure controls and procedures aadgmted in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintsprocedures, as of the end of the period coueyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changettie registrang internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabr® that has materially affect
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegyistrant’s internal control over financial repodj and

5. The registrang’ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitasmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and m@& weaknesses in the design or operation of falecontrol over financial reportil
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect tagistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial informatior
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materiddat involves management or other employees who laggnificant role in tt
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 11, 2014

/s] Mac McConnell

Mac McConnell

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)







Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarkes Act of 2002, as amended.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as added hyo8e306 of the Sarban&3xley Act of 2002, as amended, the undersignedeaffof DXF
Enterprises, Inc. (the “Company”) hereby certifieat the Company’s Annual Report on FormKL@sr the year ended December 31, 2013
“Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Sectiond3¢r 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities ErgeaAct of 1934, as amended
U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)), and that the informationtagred in the Report fairly presents, in all matkeriespects, the financial condition i
results of operations of the Company.

Dated: March 11, 2014

/s/David R. Little
David R. Little
President and Chief Executive Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pleursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is notdofiled as part of the Report or as a
separate disclosure document.







Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb@rkes Act of 2002, as amended

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as added hyo8e306 of the Sarban&xley Act of 2002, as amended, the undersignedeaffof DXF
Enterprises, Inc. (the “Company”) hereby certifieat the Company’s Annual Report on FormKL@sr the year ended December 31, 2013
“Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Sectiond3¢r 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities ErgeaAct of 1934, as amended
U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)), and that the informationtagred in the Report fairly presents, in all matkeriespects, the financial condition i
results of operations of the Company.

Dated: March 11, 2014
/sIMac McConnell

Mac McConnell
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished $plpursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is nat¢péiled as part of the Report or a
separate disclosure document.







